CITY OF DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS BOPC VIRTUAL MEETING June 10, 2021 at 2:57 P.M.



MS. WHITE: Good afternoon again and welcome to the Detroit Board of Commissioners meeting. And please note the following reminders for virtual meeting on Zoom.us. A message regarding zoom policies: attendees do not need to identify themselves unless they would like to make a comment. Attendees can phone in to the meeting and phone numbers will be masked by zoom.

8 If attendees join in by computer without a zoom 9 account, they may be prompted for a name and email. The 10 email is not visible to panelists or attendees. This is a 11 prompt from zoom, not the city of Detroit. Additionally, 12 the email address does not need to be your true email 13 address. It can be none@none.com or anything similar will 14 be fine for logging in.

A reminder about the meeting forum. As a reminder, please adhere to the Board's Bylaws and zoom's policies of using this forum appropriately. Failure to adhere to the policies will result in dismissal from the meeting. Accessing zoom platforms requires adherence to all policies.

Regarding BOPC contact information, for administration please dial (313) 596-1830. Or email the board of commissioners at bopc@DetroitMi.gov. For complaint investigations, please contact the office of the chief investigator to file a non-criminal complaint.



And the 24-hour complaint line is: (313) 596-2499. The
 fax number is (313) 596-1831. And please visit the
 board's website at detroitmi.gov/BOPC.

4 Regarding BOPC information resources, the city's 5 website at detroitmi.gov/BOPC you will be able to find 6 the meeting calendar minutes, reports, presentations, 7 draft policy directives, video links and much more. Also join the email list for weekly agendas. And you may 8 9 contact us at BOPC@Detroitmi.gov, or you may call (313) 596-1830 and provide your email address to get the draft 10 11 agenda, distributed each Tuesday to over 360 people. You 12 may also subscribe to GovDelivery where there are over 13 6,800 people now receive BOPC news alerts and draft 14 agendas. You may also sign up on the Detroitmi.gov 15 homepage for more information. Also note the BOPC Zoom 16 link and other information is also available on the 17 Board's Facebook page.

18 Regarding public comments instructions, the virtual 19 meeting will use a forum for public comments and you can 20 sign up on Smartsheet without an email address. The board 21 of police commissioners allows one hour from 3:00 to 4:00 22 PM for the public to request to speak during public 23 comments or oral communications on the agenda. To make a 24 request without Smartsheet, meeting participants may use 25 the "raise hand" icon on the website, or they may press



1 star nine (*9) on the telephone.

2 Regarding important reminders for public comments. 3 Upon joining the meeting, participants will join the 4 meeting muted. Please do not start your video unless 5 invited to do so by the host. Video, images, or 6 unprotected speech deemed inappropriate by the Chair will 7 result in your dismissal from the meeting. Remember that 8 you may complete the Smartsheet form. Remember you may 9 use the Zoom controls on your computer screen to "raise 10 hand," or you may dial star nine (*9) from a mobile 11 device. You may use any one of these options by 4:00 PM 12 to be acknowledged for public comments.

And lastly each speaker will have two minutes to speak during public comments. The BOPC staff will acknowledge each speaker. We ask that you remain respectful and professional and refrain from violating the Board's Bylaws, zoom's terms of services, and other relevant laws and ordinances, which are posted on all meeting access forums.

At this time please silence your phones and other background sounds to prevent interrupting the meeting. Thank you and now Chairperson Bell.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Good afternoon Board. Thank you,24 Ms. White.

25 COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon, good afternoon.



1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you for your attendance and 2 due diligence in terms of a timely manner. I'm going to 3 call the meeting to order at this time. We're going to 4 have innovation by Chaplain Hopkins.

CHAPLAIN HOPKINS: Father, we thank you for this 5 moment. We pray that you will give us the grace to lead 6 7 in perilous times. I pray that you bless every commissioner. I pray right now, God that you bless this 8 meeting. Bless our city. God, we pray for your grace to 9 be upon every officer and everyone that's connected to 10 this meeting in the name that we pray our father, Amen. 11 12 COMMISSIONERS: Amen.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Chaplain. The next 14 order of business would be the introduction of the 15 Commissioners starting with the Vice-Chair.

VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Thank you, Chair Bell. And good afternoon to the Honorable Board Police Commissioners, as well as the hardest working staff, the BOPC staff. Good afternoon to the citizens of the City of Detroit. And of course our men and women and blue. Good afternoon. My name is Annie Mae Holt, Vice-Chair, and Commissioner At Large.

23 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Thank you District 1.

24 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Good afternoon, everyone. Police25 Commissioner Darryl Brown District 1.



1	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. District 2.
2	COMMISSIONER BERNARD Good afternoon on this hot
3	muggy day, everyone. I'm attorney Linda Bernard. I
4	represent District 2, soon to be home of Amazon.
5	VICE-CHAIR HOLT: With the union?
б	COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I put my -
7	- they voted that down, right throughout the country. Detroit will be.
8	CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 3.
9	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Good afternoon everyone. I am
10	Shirley Burch. The Commissioner for the famous 3rd
11	District where we practice love where you live. Thank
12	you.
13	CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 4, your Chair, Willie
14	Bell. District 5. District 6.
15	COMMISSIONER CARTER: Good afternoon, everyone. Lisa
16	Carter, District 6.
17	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Don't be shocked. I'm
18	going to say District 7 now.
19	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Oh, hello everyone. This is
20	Police Commissioner William M. Davis, District 7.
21	Officers Love where you work.
22	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. At-Large, Commissioner
23	Hernandez.
24	COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, everyone.
25	This is Hernandez, At-Large for all 7 Districts in this



Page 7

1 great City.

2	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Commissioner Jones.
3	COMMISSIONER JONES: Good afternoon everyone. First
4	I'd like to give homage to my fellow Police Commissioners
5	to Chief White and his executive team. To First Assistant
6	Chief Bettison and our community partners are listening
7	right now. Thank you for joining us on this day.
8	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Last but not least
9	Reverend, sorry, Correction. Commissioner Holley.
10	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Amen.
11	COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you very much. Good
12	afternoon. Thank you so much. Present and accounted for.
13	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Thank you. It sounded
14	like a military.
15	MRS. WHITE: Mr. Chair, you have a quorum.
16	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Thank you. We move on
17	to the Agenda. Just make a note that we have a couple of
18	items in reference to the closed session that we
19	reconvened, but we didn't take an action. So I'm going to
20	have you address that during the agenda. So it would be
21	brief and to the point. It's something that we discussed.
22	Move forward approval of the agenda.
23	COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: So moved.
24	COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: support.

25 COMMISSIONER JONES: Support.



CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been properly moved and

1

supported. Discussion. Those in favor. Aye. 2 3 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Opposed. Motion carries. The next 4 5 item would be approval of Minutes for June 3rd, 2021. COMMISSIONER BROWN: So moved. 6 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Additional corrections. 8 COMMISSIONER JONES: support. 9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: They've been properly moved and supported. Discussion. Those in favor, aye. 10 11 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those oppose. The motion carries. 13 Ms. White the Board staff in OCI. 14 MRS. WHITE: Yes, through the Chair, the Department 15 of Innovation and Technology is monitoring and recording 16 the Board's meeting today. Our court reporter is Mr. Don Handyside and the following Board staff members are in 17 attendance, Mr. Robert Brow, Administrative specialist, 18 19 Ms. Teresa Blossom, Community Relations Coordinator, Jonya Underwood, Administrative Assistant Investigator, 20 Tiffany Stewart, Director, Katrina Patillo, Director of 21 Police Personnel, Assistant Corporation, Counsel, Erica 2.2 Savage Whitley, Interim Chief Investigator Lawrence 23 24 Akbar, Supervising Investigator Ansley Cromwell, Acting Supervising Investigator LiSonya Sloan, Acting 25



1 Supervising Investigator Rosalia Madrigal, Senior

2 Investigator Adella Rivera.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Ms. White. Do we have 4 any, I'm sorry, let's go to the Deputy Chief Fitzgerald 5 representing Chief Craig.

6 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Chief White now, but thank7 you, Chairman Bell.

8 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Wait a minute, wait a minute. 9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Let's try that again. Representing 10 James E. White.

DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Thank you so much, Chairman. We currently have a barricaded gun situation over on the west side. Chief White is out there himself. So I'll be sitting in for him and he might jump on, he

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I understand that. The mission at 17 hand comes first? Can we do introductions? Any other DPD 18 personnel that you can see Deputy Chief, if not Ms. White 19 can assistant.

DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Yes, I'm going to ask Secretary White to do that please because I can't see anyone actually.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

15

may not.

MRS. WHITE: Yes. Through the Chair, in reviewing the attendees list, I see the following Captain, Derek May,



Captain Lena Liddell, Captain Michael Chambers, Captain Vernail Newson Commander Kyra Joy Hope, Director, Christopher Graveline, Sergeant Gwendolyn Stokes, Lieutenant Sharon McClure, Lieutenant Mark Young, President of the LSA Association, NPO D. Maples, Officer Vazquez, Police Officer Daniel Glass, Lieutenant Pestello B Williams, Reserve Assistant Chief Stephen Lewis, Sergeant Edward Jackson, Sergeant Gerald Hewitt, Captain Tanya Leonard Gilbert. And that concludes the DPD executives present today. And Mr. Chair, if I might include the remaining staff members that I intended to mention earlier from the Office of the Chief

13 Investigator, Investigator Giana Carter, Investigator

14 Daniel Calloway, Investigator Markita Stanton,

15 Investigator Mark, excuse me, Roslyn Banks, Investigator 16 Carolyn Nichols. And that is all that I see at this time. 17 Thank you.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. White. We have any 19 elected officials or representatives of elected

20 officials?

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

21 MRS. WHITE: Yes. Through the Chair, former Police 22 Commissioner, Ricardo Moore is present Ms. Marie Overall 23 of State Representative Tyrone Carter's Office and 24 Community Advisory Council. Scotty Bowman are also 25 present. Thank you.



Page 11

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Ms. White, can you send me my remarks again? I seemed to have lost - my iPad is 2 not picking up the internet. Meanwhile, we're going to 3 move on to the close session issue. Commissioner Bernard, 4 are you prepared to address that issue or those issues? 5 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Yes, Mr. Chairman. It became 6 apparent after we started the closed session that the job 7 specifications as written were incomplete and not 8 9 appropriate for the task at hand. We received many resumes from people who really wanted to be an executive 10 assistant, a secretary, an administrative assistant, 11 12 things like that. It didn't address the core issues and functions of the Board of Police Commissioners. Our Board 13 14 quote "Secretary" is really the Board Executive Director 15 and she, or he manages staff, they have to make decisions 16 about personnel. They make recommendations, they do 17 evaluations, they do everything that any other Executive Director or CEO would do. So our resume pool was 18 19 reflecting the former and not the latter, not really the job responsibilities appropriate to the position of Board 20 Secretary. So Mr. Chairman, I'd like to say that 21 basically, a review of the employment applications 22 regarding Secretary to the Board, we will hold our 23 current applications in advance and update the job 24 25 descriptions to gain a larger pool of applicants who can



1 actually do the job.

COMMISSIONER BERNARD: We think that currently the 2 job description is misleading in the sense that it 3 suggests the position as a clerical position and it is 4 not. And it does not include the executive level 5 responsibilities of the position. Based on this, we would 6 like to evaluate the job specifications and update them 7 appropriately. Mr. Chairperson, when you indicated that 8 you would entertain a motion at this time, concerning 9 this matter, my motion is as follows: I move that we 10 repost the Secretary to the Board position for 30 days. 11 12 And for staff to work with the Human Resources Department 13 to update the job description for Secretary to the Board 14 to include: 1). minimally the Secretary to the Board 15 position is the top level executive position, a non-16 clinical position. 2) Candidates must provide a writing 17 sample. 3) Incorporate the requirement of at least five years of management experience. 4) The Secretary to the 18 19 Board leaves the day-to-day operations of the Detroit 20 Board of Police Commissioners to enhance its overall 21 effectiveness in the delivery of oversight services and initiatives. 5) They will supervise all the BOPC 2.2 23 employees in the performance of their duties in 24 accordance with the City Charter and the Board's Bylaws. And then any other key administrative items as 25



1 recommended by Human Resources or by members of this

2 Board.

3 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Second.

4 COMMISSIONER JONES: Support.

5 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Support.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been properly moved and

7 supported. Discussion those in favor, aye.

8 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed. The motion carries. 10 Thank you, Commissioner Bernard.

11 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Now we move on to the Chairman's remarks. I will be brief and to the point. First of all, 13 14 I just wanted to knowledge the fair that the UAW Hall, I 15 mean, not UAW Hall, their facilities for retired First 16 Assistant Chief Lashinda Stair, a 25-year career. I come on was a fantastic affair, really fantastic. I want to 17 thank the Commissioners that attended and wish the best 18 19 for our former First Assistant Chief. Also, we attended the police in Detroit Fire Women's in Blue event, a 20 rooster tail, a historic rooster tail. It was a fantastic 21 affair. There was recognition of the two honorees who 2.2 23 were designated as the two from the Fire Department and also from the Police Department. The keynote speaker was 24 Honorable Denise Page Hood, Chief US District Judge, and 25



Eastern District of Michigan. Outstanding remarks from 1 the District Chief Judge. I want to thank the 2 Commissioner that attended. It had been already mentioned 3 that Vice-Chair Holt and Commissioner Bernard, maybe not 4 5 mentioned, but they were in attendance to represent us. Today we hold our Board's annual election. Every Board 6 member receives information about this process. 7 Information is also aligned to Bylaws, Article 4. 8 Officers. So we received that information. I'm going to 9 move on to - you just heard that Chief White is in a 10 barricaded gunman situation. He would be reporting out 11 12 hopefully if not, we would hear from Deputy Chief Charles 13 Fitzgerald and also the Chief press conference way held 14 this morning regarding the strategy for summer crowd 15 control. I assumed that a Deputy Chief will want to talk 16 about that. It has been outlined in terms of the press 17 coverage.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: I think you can always go back to 18 19 Facebook in reference to seeing it live. We are not doing it live now, but see what actually took place, if you 20 have an opportunity. Today we have a resolution to 21 support Michigan Legislative action for recouping police 2.2 23 training costs. You recall that the Board previous 24 supported Senator Silvia Santana's bill to show recouping train and call it most recently, State Representative I 25



1 wrong car to introduce house would be a 4747 with key address regarding reimbursement amount on the period of 2 appointment after training, this issue impacts a city and 3 a department, and we are looking forward to making an 4 5 impact in this area. Hopefully, I just want to say, if you look at the separation, you'll see that 12 officers 6 separated in that time period and 8 of them left for 7 another department. So once again, we have trained and 8 certified these officers for another department. 9

CHAIRPERSON BELL: They left in some instance one 10 year, two years, but I think all of them was less than 11 12 five years. Bills like that we definitely support. And 13 you can contact your State, Senator, and State 14 Representative in reference to the issue. We will hear 15 from the 2nd Precinct. We will hear from our HR Director 16 and also from the Police Reserve. They will get 10 minutes apiece. We will ensure we adhere to the timeline 17 to continue the meeting agenda. So I hope that I have the 18 19 Commissioners support in reference to what transpired at 20 the last meeting. We don't want to repeat that in the 21 future or whatever in terms of the timeframe and listen if it is something pertinent, one minute it might be over 2.2 23 two minutes, but we're going to try to stick to that time 24 frame. So they've been informed that is the script. So I need your cooperation in terms of Q and A afterward. We 25



1 continue to have public comments and we hopefully have a meeting decorum and please Commissioners wait until we 2 recognize you. Vice-Chair is going to help me reference 3 to recognizing you, as you know I can't see all these 4 artificial hand or your hand, but we're trying our best 5 6 to get you in order. Commissioner Davis, yes, we see your hand, we're going to try to definitely get everybody in 7 order. We are trying our best. I just want to highlight 8 that because sometimes we overlook you. I admit that. So 9 we move on to the election at this time. The Office for 10 11 Chair and Vice-Chair.

12 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Chair.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

14 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Commissioner Burton texted me 15 saying, he's trying to get into the meeting.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, he should text or call Mrs.
17 White.

18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman?

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

20 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I would like to move for the

21 position of Chairperson of the Board of Police

22 Commissioners, Reverend Jim Holley.

23 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Second.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, it is somewhat premature. I

25 have to open the election process.



1 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I thought you meant [16:44 2 inaudible]. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. I think this Body is ready 3 for the election of Chair first of all, then thereafter 4 5 we will do the Vice-Chair. Are there any nominations for 6 Chair? COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I nominate Reverend Holley. 7 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Second. 8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: And you really don't need a second 9 for nomination. 10 11 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Okay. 12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It always stands. Any other 13 nominations; any other nominations; any other 14 nominations? I have indicated that three times, so the 15 nominations close and therefore, are we ready for the vote; Vice-Chair? 16 17 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Yes. COMMISSIONER CARTER: For the vote, there are no 18 19 other nominees. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, I still want to take a vote 20 and make sure that's clear. District 1. 21 2.2 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yes. 23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 2. 24 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Yes. CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 3. 25



1	COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes.
2	ASSISTANT CORPORATION COUNSEL WHITLEY: Mr. Chair, I
3	hate to interrupt. My apologies. This is attorney
4	Whitley. Can we have Reverend Holley accept for the
5	record prior to the vote?
6	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley, can you
7	accept [17:59 inaudible]?
8	COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Yes, I do. I do.
9	COMMISSIONER BURCH: That's a good, good point.
10	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.
11	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: A major point.
12	CHAIRPERSON BELL: I assumed, but on the record he
13	accepted. District - where are we? District 4, yes.
14	District 5. District 6.
15	COMMISSIONER CARTER: Yes.
16	CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 7.
17	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.
18	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Hernandez.
19	COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.
20	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Jones.
21	COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes.
22	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley. Yes.
23	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. It's now official,
24	Chair-Elect will take Office on July 1st. The Chair will
25	take nomination for the Vice-Chair position at this time.



Page 19

1 Are there any nominations?

2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, I nominate

3 Commissioner Brown for Vice-Chair. He's previously [18:524 inaudible].

5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I second that. Oh, we don't need 6 a second.

COMMISSIONER JONES: Through the Chair, I nominate
Commissioner Martin Jones for the position of Vice-

9 Chairman of Board of Police Commissioners.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Are there any other 11 nominations; Are there any other nominations; Are there 12 any other nominations?

13 COMMISSIONER JONES: Through the Chair, motion to14 close nominations.

15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We are closed. I announced it 16 three times. I think we in order starting off with 17 Commissioner Brown. He was nominated first of all. Well, 18 you vote who you want to vote for. We don't have to. You 19 state who you're voting for. The floor is now open for 20 voting, starting with District 1. I'm sorry.

21 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Point of information, sir.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Excuse me. I'm sorry.

23 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Point of information. Both of24 them need to officially accept.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes. Have they officially accept?



1	COMMISSIONER BROWN: I do accept the nomination.
2	COMMISSIONER JONES: Commissioner Martin Jones. I do
3	accept the nomination.
4	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Vice-Chair Holt.
5	VICE-CHAIR HOLT: I cast my vote for Commissioner
6	Martin Jones.
7	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, District 1.
8	COMMISSIONER BROWN: I cast my vote for Commissioner
9	Brown.
10	CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 2.
11	COMMISSIONER BERNARD: My vote is for Commissioner
12	Brown.
13	CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 3.
14	COMMISSIONER BURCH: I submit my vote for
15	Commissioner Darryl Brown.
16	CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 4. Jones. District 5.
17	District 6.
18	COMMISSIONER CARTER: Jones.
19	CHAIRPERSON BELL: District 7.
20	COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Brown, definitely.
21	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Hernandez.
22	COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Jones.
23	CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Jones.
24	COMMISSIONER JONES: My vote is for Commissioner
25	Jones.



Page 21

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley.

2 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Jones.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Could we get the
official count this time, Ms. White?
MRS. WHITE: Yes. Through the Chair. There were 6
votes for Commissioner Jones for the office of Vice-

7 Chair. And there were 4 votes for Commissioner Brown for 8 the Office of Vice-Chair.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. We congratulate 9 Commissioner Jones as Vice-Chair. We move on to the 10 Resolution to support the Mission Legislative Action for 11 12 recouping police training cost. I think Commission Holt. 13 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Oh, thank you. Chair Bell. 14 Resolution to support Michigan Legislative action for 15 recouping police training costs. WHEREAS as the 16 supervisory oversight body for the Detroit Police Department, the Board of Police Commissioners has vested 17 charter mandated authority to ensure effective law-18 19 enforcement certified and fair policing for all. And WHEREAS the Michigan Commission on Law Enforcement 20 21 Standards, commonly known as NACOLES serves as the licensing agency for all municipal law enforcement 2.2 23 officers in the state NACOLES mandates and requirements 24 are the foundation for anyone seeking to become police officers. Its criteria for licensing serve as the basis 25



for recruiting training and employing new law enforcement 1 2 professionals. State estimates range from \$6,000 to \$10,000 for the cost of basic police training. And 3 WHEREAS the Detroit Police Department has long held the 4 standards. Excuse me, the status of a state certified 5 policing agency authorized to provide training 6 certification and licensure based on MCOLES and DPD 7 requirements. The Department pays cadets during training 8 as part of this commitment to recruiting and retaining 9 the best candidates. 10

11 The Detroit Police Academy is recognized as one of 12 the top-tier law enforcement training programs in the 13 state and nation. And WHEREAS the City and Department 14 have experienced continued challenges with academy 15 candidates seeking other agency employment immediately or 16 a short time after graduation. Over the years, we have 17 observed a pattern where Detroit free training may be used unfairly. Detroit records show that about 19% of 18 19 academy graduates continue to leave the Detroit Police Department within five years. Such high turnover results 20 21 in the loss of investment of millions of public taxpayer dollars, including the loss of personnel time and 2.2 23 resources; and WHEREAS in recent years, Michigan legislators have introduced bills to help end this 24 pattern of allowing cities like Detroit to recruit 25



1 training fees and costs. During the 2019-2020 legislative 2 session, the Board supported Senator Sylvia Santana's bill to allow cities to have some training costs repaid 3 by Police Academy graduates who live within three years. 4 5 On April 29th, 2021 Representative Tyrone Carter introduced House Bill 4747 with the same intent. As 6 proposed, the bill also will require reimbursement 7 training costs to law enforcement agencies that fund 8 police training. Its basis reimbursement amounts to the 9 period of employment after training. THEREFORE BE IT 10 11 RESOLVED the Detroit Board Police Commissioners supports 12 Michigan Legislature action as needed and essential state 13 policy to assist municipalities with effective use of 14 public funds for police training and retention, the Board 15 urges passage of House Bill 4747 to assist greatly with 16 the Board's duty to ensure effective use of limited 17 public and taxpayer dollars and to preserve adequate funding for programs, initiatives, projects, and human 18 19 resources that enhanced the Detroit Police Department and public safety in Detroit. Through the Chair, I move that 20 21 we place this Resolution in the archives of BOPC.

22 COMMISSIONER JONES: Support.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been moved and supported.24 Discussion. Those in favor, aye.

25 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. Aye.



Page 24

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed. Motion carries. Thank you. Vice-Chair Holt, I want to say that I think 2 this bill is critical. We would also have in the near 3 future state Senator Stephanie Chang bill too. So we're 4 5 looking forward to that. I would hope that this Board's leadership would address our unions starting with the 6 commanding officer of the police Department thereafter 7 the LSA, the DPOA, and see where they stand on this 8 particular matter in terms of the former request to that 9 10 extent. I know where the Council stands, but we would contact the Council, we will contact the Mayor to support 11 12 our Resolution and all the other initiatives in the City 13 of Detroit that's concerned about this issue. This issue 14 has been before us for the last 25 years or longer. So 15 when you can see people wanting to know how we represent 16 the City of Detroit, at least we can get reimbursed and recoup for the training and certification of these 17 office. 18

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: So I would hope that each 20 Commissioner take it on themselves to contact the 10 21 state representative that represents Detroit and others, 22 because we have to reach across the aisle in terms of 23 getting this. I know a state rep Tyrone Carter has been 24 tireless on this issue, but he needs our support. So can 25 we get that support?



1 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes. CHAIRPERSON BELL: So Board, no doubt, you voted and 2 3 nobody was in opposition. So I want to thank you for that. So we will move on that soon in terms of advocating 4 a resolution to this effect. 5 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Chair. 6 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes sir. COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Point of information. 8 9 Commissioner Burton is on the phone. He said that he was 10 on the call, but they refused to recognize him and he was 11 trying to vote. 12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, sir, let me say this to this 13 issue. If Commissioner Burton, like every Commissioner COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, this is 14 15 Commissioner Willie Burton. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Excuse me, you don't have the 16 floor, sir. 17 18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I want you to know, I asked the 19 staff, how do you mute yourself or unmute yourself 20 rather, and I guess we were still waiting for that 21 prompt. 2.2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burton, you don't 23 have the floor. COMMISSIONER BURTON: You went to District 5 and I 24 made myself available for the roll and all of a sudden 25



Page 26

1 apparently you guys could not hear me.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: This is just what we're speaking 2 3 of. If Commissioner Burton would join us at 20 minutes to 3, like all of the majority of the Commissioners, engage, 4 5 dealing with any technical problem, then he wouldn't have this problem weekly, weekly, weekly. So, therefore, we 6 are going to move on. You do not have the floor, sir. 7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I'm out in the community with 8 my constituents and I'm doing the zoom from out in the 9 field, but I was present. I was communicating with staff 10 11 trying to get in. 12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Excuse me, excuse me. You do not

have the floor, sir. I wish you would stop speaking and honor our rules and regulation and bylaws, and what is proper decorum. You do not have the floor. We move on to Deputy Chief Charles Fitzgerald, sir.

17 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Point of information, sir.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Sir, we move on to Deputy Chief,19 Charles Fitzgerald.

20 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay sir.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Deputy Chief, you've22 got the floor.

DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Sounds good. Thank you
 Chair. Good afternoon, Honorable Board. First, some good
 news. Our barricaded situation on west Graham has



Page 27

1 peacefully resolved itself. The suspect has come out of the house and the female that he was holding against her 2 will is also out and unharmed. So that is good news. I'll 3 go briefly through the crime stuff. And then I will talk 4 about Chief White's five-point summer crowd management. 5 Like most major cities our criminal homicides are up 6 about 16%. That's 18 over the same time last year. Our 7 non-fatal shootings are up 30% which is 103 over the same 8 9 time last year. Our carjackings are up 22% that about 15 10 incidents above last year, but I do want to point out just in the last 30 days we have seen some significant 11 12 decreases across all those categories. When we expect as 13 the weather gets warmer more folks are out, the calls for service go up, we expect some of that crime to go up and 14 15 it's going in the opposite direction. So I think it is 16 the numerous layers of our crime strategies that we have 17 in place. The hardworking men and women of our department. They're giving up a lot of their family time 18 19 to come in on overtime and work long hours to make sure everyone is safe. 20

DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: So just with homicides in the last 30 days, we've dropped 13% in the last 30 days. For non-fatal shootings, we've dropped 17%. So while we're not super excited about it, it is trending and going in the right direction. And with our strategies, we



1 continue to hope we'll see that keep going down. If you didn't get a chance to watch the press conference this 2 morning, Chief White rolled out his five point plan for 3 our crowd management. The first point in the plan is 4 engaged increased presence. Point 2 is strict noise 5 enforcement and I'll kind of go into detail for each one 6 in a second. Point 3 is the racing drifting detail, which 7 we've been operating pretty much since the start of the 8 9 year. Point 4 is the parking lot encode enforcement. And then part five is the community engagement. 10

11 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: The Mayor has very 12 graciously authorized extra money for us to allow us to get extra officers out there on overtime. And he has 13 14 approved 4000 hours per weekend for summer crowd 15 management and an additional 2000 hours for the drifting 16 speeding detail. So that will not allow us, we won't have 17 to pull from any of the Precincts. We will not have to pull from anyone who's answering 911 calls for service 18 19 which is great. The increased presence downtown is going to pull, it's going to be an overtime detail, so folks 20 will work their normal detail and then they will be 21 available for the late hours in the downtown, Greektown, 2.2 Rivertown, drifting, drag racing on east and west sides 23 of town and any other things that come about during that. 24 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: So we believe the increased 25



presence is definitely going to help the strict 1 enforcement of the noise. One of the things that we've 2 3 noticed that keeps folks from staying downtown when they're actually down there are the rooftop bars the 4 5 parking lots where they're playing music at accessible 6 levels. We have been meeting strategically with all the business owners downtown. Chief White's main issue was 7 that we need to give them a good warning, give them a 8 heads up that 10 o'clock is going to be that cutoff time. 9 At 10 o'clock when that noise, when the loud levels of 10 music are stopped on the rooftops, we believe strongly 11 12 that folks will start making their way toward their cars 13 and head out of the downtown area without just that 14 constant circle of going around and around because the 15 music is playing and folks are enjoying the music. 16 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: So between the cars, parking lots, those businesses, we believe we'll get our 17 bang for our buck. The drifting and drag racing, we are 18 19 we're not going to let off the gas pedal for lack of better terms for that. We have to continue to seize cars. 20 We have to continue to ticket owners of these vehicles, 21 take these cars under nuisance abatement, and forfeit 2.2 these vehicles to really make a deterrence from this kind 23 of behavior. I'm not sure if you saw during the week,

there was a clip of, one of our drifting, drag racing 25

24



areas, where cars were just deliberately running through
red lights and that's what we faced during these things.
So we need to do everything we can to ensure we have
enough bodies out there, we have enough staffing levels.
We got the helicopters up so that we can do our absolute
best to keep our citizens safe.

7 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: The parking lot code enforcement, we've talked about a little bit. We're going 8 9 to hold the parking lot employees and owners to kind of hold their feet to the fire to make sure that they're 10 good partners with us. They have to have a person there, 11 12 an attendant in the lot. Those lots are supposed to be 13 well lit if you're not paying to stay parked and move, 14 we're going to strongly encourage them to keep folks 15 moving along. No parties, no tailgating during these 16 nights because we do see a lot of our problems with that. 17 And then the last part is obviously a big component, as well is the community partnerships, getting some of our -18 19 you know, we've already met with our downtown partners. We're going to continue to meet with them on a regular 20 basis to make sure that they're being the partners where 21 we really want them to be and we're being the best 2.2 23 partner for them.

24 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: And then also our community 25 members that come out and we have four different peace



walks scheduled already for this weekend, which are going 1 to help. And then all of our other groups, like our 2 3 Detroit 300 and other groups that come out and help and support. So that's kind of it, in a nutshell, the Chief's 4 5 plan. Lastly for me, because I know there's a big agenda is that I just wanted to thank everyone for coming out to 6 AC Stair's retirement party. It was a pretty fancy 7 shindig and I know that it means a lot to her for her 25 8 years. She was an amazing woman officer, everything. So 9 we're going to miss her greatly. So, thank you all that 10 you could attend. That's all I had for me, Chairman Bell. 11 12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Deputy Chief, I thought 13 that report was very meaningful, but I had one question initially. My understanding is the media report out maybe 14 15 three or four officers were hurt in the melee last week, 16 is that true, and how are they doing?

DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Yes. They're all doing fine 17 now. There are some minor injuries to the extent police 18 19 officers, they all get little ouiess we call them, but they're doing okay. It was a dangerous, hostile situation 20 where officers were getting surrounded and virtually 21 attacked from all different directions. So that's not fun 2.2 23 for anyone. It's certainly not fun for the police, but it's not fun for our citizens that come down and have to 24 endure that as well. So this plan is going to take, a big 25



push in the right direction to make sure that doesn't
 happen again.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Commissioners, the4 floor - Commissioner Bernard.

5 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I just trying to understand.
6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Davis next. I'm
7 sorry. I didn't see you. Commissioner Bernard, go ahead,
8 Davis will be next.

9 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: How about raise of a hand?
10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, I'm sorry. Ladies first.
11 Let's go ahead, we'll get to you, sir.

12 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I'm trying to understand why 13 you're closing downtown Detroit and Greektown at 10 14 o'clock. All of the businesses in Detroit, particularly 15 in the hospitality industry had been hurt greatly by 16 COVID. I mean, how can they make money if they have to 17 close 4 hours early?

DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: We're not closing the clubs, ma'am. We're just going to move the music inside. We just don't want the rooftop music to be going and blaring at the levels that are uncomfortably loud for most folks that come down. So we're not closing the bar down. What we want to do is have them move the music inside.

25 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Okay. I understand.



Page 33

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Davis, and then
 Commissioner Burch.

3 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes I have two questions, I know right now a lot of people in the various communities feel 4 5 that their communities are not getting enough police 6 protection, enough response time. And it sounds like even 7 downtime is going to get even more service to the detriment of the community and other neighborhoods. Also, 8 9 as it relates to that, are they also going to authorize overtime for people like in the second, sixth, and tenth 10 Precincts? That's one question. My second question, as it 11 12 relates - do you know how many personnel we're going to 13 lose going to Columbus because it appears as they could 14 easily outbid us for our staff. Those are two separate questions, sir. 15

16 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Over eight weeks ago Mayor Duggan approved a large chunk of overtime money for the 17 Precincts. We are not losing anybody from the Precinct. 18 19 As a matter of fact, when Chief White walked in the door, he made it a point to not take folks from the Precincts 20 to do a lot of these details. So we have folks that say 21 like they work a medical section, they can volunteer to 2.2 23 come down and work overtime. If you worked training, if you worked some of the support side operations, they're 24 going to be working overtime downtown. I have details, we 25



1 meet every Friday with the Chief to talk about weekend strategy in the Precincts themselves. And I have overtime 2 details almost around the clock in all of the west side 3 Precincts as does the east side. You know, when I was 4 talking about that reduction in the nonfatal and fatal 5 6 numbers, it's working because we have a lot of folks that are giving up their family time, their weekend time, any 7 other time, their off time to work extra hours and it's 8 paying off, we're still seizing guns. 9

DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: That just an incredibly 10 large number. You know FBI in May alone, did 3.6 million 11 12 background checks for weapons in the United States and was selling 2 million guns a month. And unfortunately, 13 14 the legal ones are turning illegal and they're making 15 their way to the street. So we are doing everything we 16 possibly can to keep the Precinct safe. And we've been 17 doing that for two-plus months now. So as far as losing for Columbus, the only person that I know other than 18 19 Chief Bryant, I think she's going to do an amazing job down there. I know that Captain LaShanna Potts has 20 accepted a position down there as well as an Assistant 21 2.2 Chief. And they are very fortunate to get her. She is an 23 absolute star here at DPD but Chief White and even Chief Craig before that has said it many, many a time, we have 24 25 a deep bench. So we're going to pull up some folks that



are equally as talented. And we're going to be just fine,
 Commissioner.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burch.

4 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I thank you, DC Fitzgerald, for 5 your service. Would you please ask Chief White - I didn't 6 hear in his plan regarding mental health with the drugs. 7 The drugs are so prevalent and our gas stations so easily purchased by our young people. And number 11 had the 8 9 service of DC Bryant who's now gone. No one has been replaced to take her place. And I've asked this question 10 11 over and over regarding the canine unit. And I'm just 12 saying, where is there further assistance? Because as I 13 watched these videos Mr. Fitzgerald, I see other people taking the streets and I'm speaking of calm people like 14 15 pastors. So I know that the Police Department works with 16 pastors. Why can't they walk the streets and just call 17 for control as they did in Kalamazoo. Are you aware that Mr. Fitzgerald that the people have to get involved to 18 help you? Evidently, you all are not, you're not calling 19 in the sheriff's department or the state police to help 20 21 you. You just said that you're not short, but you're not addressing what I know that I live in number 11. And like 2.2 I said, DC Bryant is gone. I gave you quite a bit. So I 23 don't know if you can answer all that. It was a few. 24 25 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Yes, there was a few in



there but I'm going to do my best. And every time I hear 1 Mr. Fitzgerald, I think of my father. So that's a little 2 3 scary. Anyway, I'll start with the top. DC. Bryant is still on our DPD until June 22nd. Once she's officially, 4 and she goes off the books, I'm sure Chief White will 5 6 very quickly push a nomination for the rank of Deputy Chief. And he will find you a star, ma'am just as he did 7 with we did with Elaine Bryant. So we will take care of 8 that. Please don't misunderstand that when I don't 9 mention MSP in Wayne County, we beg, borrow and steal for 10 11 anyone's services. Wayne County has been helping us out 12 quite a bit. MSP is with their helicopters with street 13 patrols, with highway patrols. We have MSP out quite a 14 bit. And I did have something AC LeValley wanted you to 15 know for sure is that the law department has passed an 16 ordinance and they're going to run it through the city council for whippets. 17

DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: I think you had mentionedthat at a previous meeting.

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH Yes, I did.

DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: So that is in the works. Whippets have been a problem for years and years and years, not just in our city, in everywhere. You know, it is nitric oxide. It's a very quick euphoric high that they can buy really, really cheap anywhere. You can go to



1 Walmart and get 25 little cartridges for like \$10. So it's very, very cheap and it is a problem. So I'm glad 2 3 we're taking the approach. We get that pushed through. And as far as gas stations, and I want to, I will tell 4 5 Chief White, but I'll push that along to DC Wilson and 6 the folks over at major violators. And we can step up and 7 ramp up our enforcement, the gas stations, and parking 8 stores.

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Chief Fitzgerald. 9 You're issue about the canine, one of the executives 10 responded to that whole issue of how many canines they 11 12 have and somewhat limited. And if you listen to the 13 media, Commissioner Jones, one second, if you listened to 14 the media Wayne County Sheriff Deputy President who's a former commissioner Reginald Crawford spoke to, they are 15 16 working overtime. They have a serious shortage of manpower in the Wayne County jail. So therefore that just 17 came out recently. It has been raising an issue for quite 18 19 some time, but Wayne County Sheriff Chief Washington is trying to help us to the best of their ability, but they 20 21 have a serious manpower issue also. And Mayor Duggan, Vice-Chair and myself, met with him on these issues the 22 23 Mayor and the Assistant Chief at that time, Bettison reassured us that the Precinct would get severe attention 24 across the city. And I think you, heard Chief White how 25



1 he responded to empowering those Commanders.

2 CHAIRPERSON BELL So I think that we're moving in the 3 right direction. I'm impressed with Chief White's leadership. Anytime you change leadership, I think it's 4 crucial that he'd be out in front of the troops. So he's 5 there. I recall my career with Chief Hart. He did not 6 take the streets. He was a low-profile Chief for 20 7 years, but that is not the case in this day and age, 8 Chief White understands that in reference to the 9 leadership. So I'm impressed with that. Hopefully, we can 10 move forward. Commissioner Jones. 11

COMMISSIONER JONES: Thank you Chair. DC Fitzgerald, 12 13 this is Commissioner Jones. I did attend the press 14 conference this morning when the Chief was outlining his 15 five-point plan to address some major issues that we have 16 on the table now. One of the things that he did outline and speaking about of deploying additional troops 17 downtown and, and Mayor Duggan having granted the 18 19 overtime hours that they would need to be able to do an effective representation of DPD in the downtown area. But 20 he also made mention that our 911 services that are 21 citywide would not suffer as a result of deploying 2.2 23 additional troops in the downtown area. And I just wanted our community to be reassured that this is going to be 24 the case, whereas he's using additional funding to supply 25



1 the needs for downtown, but he's not going to let the rest of the city suffer for lack of 911 services. 2 3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. I think DC -4 Commissioner Davis, we are going to take one more 5 question and then we want to move up and wrap this up. 6 Yes sir, go ahead. COMMISSIONER DAVIS: This is from Commissioner 7 8 Burton. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Sir. I don't want to hear from 9 Commissioner Burton unless he talks directly with the 10 staff. I don't want to hear from him. 11 12 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: He said he called into the staff 13 and he got --14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Excuse me. Thank you. I heard you 15 loud and clear DC Fitzgerald, thank you for filling for 16 the Chief. A very thorough report. We will move on to HR. 17 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: You don't want to hear from him because he's on the line directly? 18 19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Move on, please. HR Director has the floor. 20 DIRECTOR PATILLO: Good afternoon. Through the Chair. 21 2.2 I'll be presenting the Human Resources Bureau report for 23 the month of May. For your current department staffing for sworn positions field, we have 2,566 that's 96%. That 24 25 includes the 57 police assistance. For your positions



vacant 4% vacant, 106. For total budgeted positions for
 the sworn police assistant is 2,672.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Excuse me. Excuse me, Director. 4 Commissioner Davis, you can mute your phone and have that 5 conversation, but not while we have it in the meeting. 6 Thank you. Director, go ahead.

DIRECTOR KATRINA PATILLO: For civilians or staff at 7 83%, 624 filled, 746 budgeted positions vacant 17%, 125 8 9 leaving total positions filled 3,187, positions vacant 231 for a total budgeted position, 3,418. For your sworn 10 recruiting from July 1st, 2020 to May 31st, 2021 total 11 12 applicants. We had 3,310. That's an increase of 194. 13 since the last time I briefed you all, in processing 32, 14 number hired 162, lack of interest 318, temporary 15 disqualified, 2023, disqualified permanently 421 and 16 awaiting MCOLES is 354. For your MCOLES testing, this is 17 written in physical agility for the month of May. We have for the written 67 schedules, 41 appeared 28 and 41 past. 18 19 13 of the 41 failed, 2 rescheduled and 24 no shows. For the physical agility, we had 99 schedule, 60 appeared, 32 20 of 60 past. 28 of 60 failed, 4 rescheduled and 35, no 21 22 shows. For the academy graduates on May 28th, we had 22 23 graduate total new hires for the month of May, we had 22 sworn, 2 civilians for a total of 24. For your Detroit 24 residency information as of May 31st for total sworn for 25



Detroit 5 74, total civilians 3 25 29 police assistance 1 for your non-Detroit 1,935, total civilians 296 and 28 2 police assistance. Civilian new hires for Detroit 3 residents 2, sworn new hires, Detroit residents 2, police 4 5 assistant zero. For the attrition, the spreadsheets have 6 been included in your packet, but for the month of May, we had 22 sworn, 12 civilians, one police assistant for a 7 total of 35. For your leave of absence and your 8 9 restricted duty, for sworn for FMLA continuous we had 2079 FMLA intermediate medical leave 2, military leave 7, 10 160 restricted, 49 disabled, and 16 sick. And then for 11 12 the civilian numbers, we had 18 FMLA, continuous 76 FMLA 13 intermediate, 4 medical leave, 4 restricted 3 six. For 14 your sworn personnel suspensions, we had a total of 10, 9 15 officers, and one corporal monthly separations for May. 16 DIRECTOR KATRINA PATILLO: Your spreadsheet is also included in your packet. We had a total of 22 and then 17 for the drop program for the month of May, we had a total 18 of 572. Just an update on recruiting initiatives. So 19 we're steaming full spread ahead with the Chief White 12 20 week, 12 Precinct recruiting, and here are the projected 21 commands for the month of June. For this weekend 7th 2.2 23 Precinct weekend of 18th June is Juneteenth is going to be a celebration neighborhood liaison for the week of 24 25 25th June, 4th Precinct. So recruiting, we're going to



1 work hand in hand with each Precinct. Please spread the 2 word to your communities, your church congregation, 3 schools, athletic teams, restaurants, grocery stores, barber and beauty salons, fraternity, and sorority 4 organizations. We've also increased our social media 5 presence. And finally, just a thank you to Commissioner 6 Holley for having to BPD recruiting on his monthly show 7 last month. Pending any questions, this concludes the 8 Human Resources brief. 9

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Director.

11 Commissioners, if not, thank you for a great report. It's 12 quite thorough. And we appreciate you addressing the 13 recruiting issue. I think DPD recruit, I was recruited by 14 two or three officers I knew prior to them joining, so 15 that's sort of crucial and you rolled that out at the 16 various Precincts. So thank you for that report.

17 DIRECTOR KATRINA PATILLO Your welcome, sir.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We move on to the 2nd Precinct.19 Commander Brian Mounsey. There he is.

20 COMMANDER MOUNSEY: Hello. Good afternoon, everybody. 21 Thank you. Chairperson Bell. Good afternoon, Honorable 22 Board of Police Commissioners and community members 23 present. My name is Brian Mounsey. I'm the Commander here 24 at the 2nd Precinct. I can't see all my staff on here, 25 but I do know that we have Captain Michael Chambers



1 joining me today, Lieutenant Stacey Greer-Travis, Sergeant Edward Jackson and at least a couple of my 2 neighborhood police officers are with us as well. 3 COMMANDER MOUNSEY: Like to start out, just giving a 4 little bit of an overview of the 2nd Precinct. It does 5 6 encompass roughly 10¼ square miles of the City of Detroit. We have a population of just about 58,000 7 residents, according to the 2010 census data. We're one 8 of the few Precincts that actually has 4 city council 9 neighborhood districts that fall within the boundaries of 10 11 the 2nd Precinct. I know there's been some talk about 12 recruiting. There are approximately 136 officers at 13 various ranks that work out of this Precinct. What I'd 14 like to point out is when I looked at my report from last 15 year, at this time, and we had 105 last year. So the 2nd 16 Precinct is up 31 positions in total over this time last year. And that's just a testament to the recruiting and 17 HR Department and the hard work that they're doing. 18 19 COMMANDER MOUNSEY: So that's been a noticeable help here at the 2nd Precinct. Community relations, obviously 20 21 that's very important to us here at the 2nd Precinct. 2.2 We're engaged in large community organizations, such as 23 Barton, McFarland, the Little Association, Hartwell Block 24 Blub. I think Ms. Pennell is on the line today. We've got a 2nd Precinct community relations council, which is 25



1 actively led by Ms. Freda Butler, Happy Home's Block Club. And also, the 2nd Precinct is home to the Detroit 2 Association of Black Organizations led by Reverend Horton 3 Sheffield. We have 6 neighborhood police officers along 4 with the community relations Sergeant that helps us put 5 programs on throughout the community, including a 6 national night out candy giveaways. This year, we were 7 able to still do drag on with the schools and we're 8 getting ready to start back up our senior movie night as 9 10 well.

11 COMMANDER MOUNSEY: Again, just for a collaboration 12 briefly about our crime stats for the 2nd Precinct. This year we are up approximately 73% in homicides. We're up 13 14 46% in criminal sexual conduct. We've seen tremendous 15 success in the category of robbery where we're showing a 16 30% reduction over last year. Our aggravated assaults are 17 up by 12% for a total part one crime increase of 8% this year, compared to this time last year. Property offenses 18 19 though are trended quite the opposite. We've done very well with burglaries being reduced by 34%, larcenies 29%, 20 motor vehicle theft has been reduced by 20% and our total 21 part one property crime reduction so far this year is 22 23 27%. So combined between property and violent part one crimes, the 2nd Precinct is currently showing a 14% 24 reduction over where we were at this time last year. 25



COMMANDER MOUNSEY: I did mention one of them our 1 struggles this year is our homicide numbers. So we've had 2 19 homicides in the Precinct this year compared to 11 3 this time last year, which is a 73% increase. Aggravated 4 5 assaults are up as well 447 this year compared to 400 6 last year. So those are the trends. We are working 7 diligently to try to address these trends with strategies, such as restore order operations. The Deputy 8 Chief mentioned overtime. That's been authorized by the 9 mayor. We've had deployed additional resources, including 10 an extra proactive out-of-service police car on each 11 12 shift each day within the 2nd Precinct, we refer to that 13 as our 80 series car. We're continuing to push forward 14 and removing illegal guns from the streets. So far this year, we have taken approximately 159 handguns and 31 15 16 long guns off the streets so far this year, compared to 17 about 76 at the same time last year. Robberies, we're 18 very happy with what we're seeing in that category. 19 That's shown a downward trend over the past several years, actually. And when you look at other violent 20 crimes in the city it's just positive news that our 21 2.2 robberies, at least that category is trending down. Since 23 2018, we've had a 29% reduction in the category of robbery over the past 3 years. I think that's pretty much 24 25 my overview as far as the stats and the background of the



Precinct. I know that Captain Chambers is on the line and
 would like to share with all of you some strategies and
 some successes that we've seen at the 2nd Precinct so far
 this year.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

6 CAPTAIN CHAMBERS: Yes, as the Commander said, I mean, we continue to focus on our hotspot areas. Some of 7 the scout car areas that's been giving us trouble, like 8 9 those scout carrier 2, one to the north end, near McNichols, the Greenfield, and also the area south of 10 Plymouth, the tire man, and just east of Greenfield 2728. 11 12 So after each shooting, and actually our detective 13 section, as well as our ceased by your team, responds, 14 they talked to witnesses, collect evidence as witnesses and try and to gather as much information as they can to 15 16 get to the bottom of exactly what happened. And actually, 17 our detective section is leading the city and closures at this particular time for non-fatal shootings at 50%. So 18 19 they've been doing an outstanding job in their investigation and seeing the response. They really go out 20 and obtain search warrants and residences go in. 21

22 CAPTAIN CHAMBERS: They're getting all kinds of 23 evidence linking back to the crime scene. The Commander 24 talked about the restore orders that we're doing with 25 cooperation. We're doing offered to engage operations,



1 trying to combat some of the prostitution that's occurring in the Precinct. We're also going out on a 2 3 Michigan Department of corrections home checks with our special operations teams and, and MTOC agents. Also just 4 some of the other things we're trying to enrich our 5 6 officers that are here at the 2nd Precinct. We give them opportunities to work in special operations, as well as 7 in the detective section to better their skillset. So 8 9 when they are on patrol, they're able to go back and utilize the tools that they've received. At the 10 11 Precincts, we have an advocate that assists with personal 12 protection orders, and we also have a social worker and 13 the Chaplain section is here as well. And they go out 14 with the officers to try and assist where they can. So we 15 have a lot going on at the 2nd Precinct and our officers 16 and staff have been doing an outstanding job. And that's 17 it.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir. Commissioner19 Davis. I didn't see her hand.

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Here is my hand.

21 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: He must have said, Commissioner22 Burch.

23 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: He normally bypass me but I know24 about the 2nd Precinct, I was just there.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burch then.



Page 48

1 COMMISSIONER BURCH. Thank you. Hello to you Commander Mounsey. Every time I see your face, I have to 2 smile because you're such a good officer. Over there in 3 4 Precinct 2, I want everybody to know that he takes care 5 of the Imperial supermarket along with the other 6 businesses, but I just want to share with you. Please 7 give a shout out to Sergeant Burke, Lieutenant Lockhart, that we miss him from number 11. That's why I said it 8 9 looked like we just lose people. So we're going to 10 regain, I know, but here's another question to you regarding the masks that are supposed to be worn in the 11 12 grocery store Commanding Mounsey, sometimes the managers 13 get these irate customers that refuse to wear the mask. 14 And so what is their right as management to say, we can't 15 serve you without a mask. How do they handle that? 16 COMMANDER MOUNSEY: Through the Chair to Commissioner 17 Burch. Thank you for your compliments this afternoon. I believe the CDC guidelines are now that if you are 18 19 vaccinated that you do not have to wear a mask in indoor spaces. However, that doesn't stop a private company from 20 21 mandating pretty much whatever rule they would like to mandate as far as - certainly, the grocery store and the 2.2 23 Imperial market and other places have the right to ask their customers to wear a mask. You know, at that point, 24 25 the customer does not want to wear a mask the store



1 employees can simply ask them to leave and suggest that you know, they don't want to do business with them if 2 they don't want to follow the rules of the store. 3 4 Certainly, we would respond to that, but probably at 5 best, you'd be looking at probably a trespassing issue or something like that once an individual was told to leave 6 the store. But again, I mean, right now we're in times 7 where things are changing with the CDC guidelines and the 8 9 store owner pretty much has to make up their mind whether or not they want to turn customers away. They can 10 certainly put somebody at the door too, I suppose and ask 11 12 customers not to enter without a mask, but as far as I 13 know, the CDC guidelines are allowing people not to go to 14 indoor spaces without a mask.

15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Well thank you for that. Just 16 please send, through the Chair. Would you just send an 17 officer now and then like, you've been doing to just 18 check out everything like you've been doing?

19 COMMANDER MOUNSEY: Yes, I certainly will. And in 20 regards to Lieutenant Lockhart, I believe he is probably 21 one of the best lieutenants in the City of Detroit. I'm 22 happy to have him here at the 2nd Precinct.

23 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, he is. That's our loss at24 number 11. Thank you.

25 COMMANDER MOUNSEY: You're welcome.



Page 50

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any other Commissioners.
 Commissioner Holley.

3 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just want to let the Commander know that Sergeant Jackson 4 5 is on the line. Do you want to add something to say? He 6 looks like he's strong and wants to stay something. SERGEANT JACKSON: Yes, I'm sorry. I just want to 7 say good afternoon to all of the hard-working Board 8 members and everyone that's on the zoom meeting today. 9 I'm just going to piggyback off of another commissioner 10 who is expressing her love and great support for Imperial 11 12 Supermarket, which the 2nd Precinct, we just have a 13 phenomenal relationship with the business district and 14 Commander Mounsey, he did mention the Easter egg hunt and 15 we will not be able to do these great things that we do 16 for the community if it were not for these businesses 17 that support us here at the 2nd Precinct. So the Easter egg hunt that we had at Mackenzie Elementary School and 18 19 Middle school was just phenomenal. We were able to work with the kids, and actually passed on a great impression 20 21 of what we do as law enforcement officers and just build that bridge in a community. So just talk about the great 2.2 23 support that we have from the community. And that's what it's about partnering with the community the citizens and 24 our schools, our churches, and our chaplains, of course. 25



1 So pretty much that's, that's all I had to say.

2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Bernard.

3 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Quickly, Commander. As, you know, a big part of the district is on 8-mile Road there 4 5 and the Ferndale police, of course, is on the other side. 6 What is your relationship so to speak with them? As you know as you know terrorize the west side of Detroit on a 7 regular basis and come into Detroit down Woodward and 8 9 everything else when they're pursuing someone. Have you 10 talked to them about any of this? They only have one, black police officer out of about 70 and they are, you 11 know, they're like big brother there all the time. Do you 12 13 have any comments or recommendations for the community? COMMANDER MOUNSEY: Well, through the Chair to 14 15 Commissioner Bernard. The 2nd Precinct border actually is 16 West McNichols. So the 2nd Precinct our Northern border is west McNichols. And then the 12th Precinct except 17 between west McNichols and 8-mile. So myself as a 18 19 Precinct Commander, although we do work, we do border Dearborn and other Precincts that we work with other 20 Precincts. I currently do not have a relationship with 21 the staff or the leadership of Ferndale but that's pretty 2.2 23 much, I quess I'm unable to address the concern just 24 because we border the 12th Precinct and the 12th Precinct that borders six mile. 25



1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you Commander and the Captain. I want to Commissioners when we make statements 2 like terrorize for another Police Department, I think 3 that is inappropriate. It's a bad choice of words. As you 4 well know everybody is concern about 8-mile Road, Mack 5 Avenue, all the adjacent areas that these border concerns 6 of traffic enforcement. I just encourage everybody to 7 slow down and abide by the speed limit and they wouldn't 8 have this problem, but I wouldn't say that any department 9 10 adjacent to us because we never know when we need their 11 help and assistance. So we try to establish that 12 relationship with all these departments at the border of 13 Detroit, the metropolitan Detroit, in fact. So keep that 14 in mind. And I just want to make one other statement when 15 they say there's a club in Harper Woods called "They 16 Say". So we should be very cautious when we say, they 17 say. If you've got a concern about a rumor or whatever it is, you should contact the Commanding Officer. And I 18 19 think they can respond to you appropriately and rather than accurate or inaccurate, but we should not be making 20 statements of, "they say" whatever they're a part of. And 21 we don't have direct knowledge. There's a whole lot going 2.2 23 on at City Street. We move on to Reserves.

24 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Just briefly. I represent25 people in those courts, and I actually do know what I'm



talking about. And there is a problem with racism on the other side of 8-mile. And I apologize, it's not a 2nd Precinct issue. You're absolutely correct, but that is a primary concern and you can look at the cases and see. CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Commissioner Bernard. We move on to Chief Lewis. Ms. White, do you have a question?

8 MRS. WHITE: Yes. Through the Chair, Commander Kyra 9 Joy Hope is on the line to give introductions before 10 Reserve Assistant Chief Lewis provides the presentation. 11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

12 COMMANDER KYRA JOY HOPE: Thank you. Through the 13 Chair. Good afternoon Honorable Board and Police 14 Commissioners. I am Commander Kyra Joy Hope of the 15 Chief's Neighborhood Liaison. And I have the pleasure 16 today of introducing to you our Reserve Assistant Chief 17 of Police, Stephen Lewis. But first I would like to introduce to you our two latest members, and that would 18 19 be Lieutenant Sharon McClure and also Gwendolyn Stokes. At this time our presentation will begin with Reserve 20 Chief of Police, Stephen Lewis. 21

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Commander. One of my23 favorite Commanders. Thank you.

24 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Good afternoon
 25 Honorable Board and thank you for that introduction,



Page 54

1 Commander Hope. Can we get the presentation up or am I going to be displaying this Ms. White? 2 3 MRS. WHITE: You do have capabilities. Thank you. 4 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Okay, give me one 5 second here. I apologize. MRS. WHITE: And if staff cohost could please ensure 6 7 that Reserve Assistant Chief Lewis have co-host capabilities. Thank you. 8 9 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Give me just one 10 moment quys. I have a little technical problem. My 11 computer just froze up a bit here. This has been 12 happening. 13 MRS. WHITE: Thank you for your patience. 14 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Okay. I appreciate 15 the opportunity to come before this Board on behalf of 16 the Detroit Police Reserve to give our report of where we are. It's been almost a year since, since we had a 17 presentation to the Board, so for those that don't recall 18 19 exactly who we are, I'll give you a little introduction 20 here. Police Reserve is uniform volunteers. We possess a 21 strong desire to serve the community in a law enforcement capacity. We have established much as the Board of Police 2.2 Commissioners by the city charter. Reserve officers play 23 24 an integral role in the Detroit Police Department. And 25 when called to duty, our powers are designated by the



Page 55

1 Chief of Police.

2 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: The Detroit Police 3 Reserve Corps is overseen by the Commanding Officers of the Chief's neighborhood liaison, which is Commander 4 Hope. Police seniority corporals, Jeffrey Johnson and 5 Royce Hill provide day-to-day coordination and management 6 of our 120 person unit. Also, we do have Sergeant Stokes 7 and Lieutenant McClure from the Chief's neighborhood 8 9 liaison as their supervisors. The reserve executive team is headed by reserve Police Chief Linda Bruce and myself, 10 Stephen Lewis. And we worked hand in hand with the CNL, 11 12 to direct and grow the membership of this valuable 13 resource. This is just an overview for your packet of our 14 organization chart that I don't need to go through in 15 this presentation, but it's there in your packet for you. 16 I want to talk about 2020 in review. 2020 was one word 17 that sums up all of 2020, and that's, COVID, not just for the Reserve Corps, but for the Police Department in 18 19 general, but COVID played an especially impactful role here in our organization. During the pandemic, we had to 20 make a lot of adjustments in a moment, but I want to tell 21 you some good things that we got done. 2.2

RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: We did roll out a new
 20 hour DPR supervisor training program, all reserves
 supervisors holding the rank of Sergeant Lieutenant. So



Page 56

1 it is something that we put together in-house with personnel from the training center leadership skills, 2 policies, procedures, and a variety of other operational 3 topics. I'm pleased to say that all supervisor members 4 5 attended and they are looking forward to making that part of their annual continuing education. We provided in the 6 reserve course safety and for all COVID testing sites 7 throughout the city, the large-scale ones, and we've been 8 assisting with the vaccine clinics this year as well. 9 10 Reservists at those sites provided traffic control, crowd control and direction, and general assistance, 11 12 particularly to the people that are elderly or mobility 13 challenged. We're there to help get them in and out of 14 the vaccine clinic safely. A new set of standard 15 operating procedures for the Reserve Corps was completed 16 to meet Police Department standards and a new online 17 Reserve detailed tracking application was created and is in pilot testing, it can assist the department spark 18 19 sheet, which will provide important visibility to all 20 executive members.

21 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Again, our Reserve 22 Corps in COVID-19. This was a struggle for us. I am 23 pleased to say that DPR members again, volunteers 24 continued to serve throughout the pandemic. Accordingly, 25 we logged over 2,600 hours of duty time in the very heart



1 of the pandemic from May of 2020 through January of 2021. 2 That's 2,600 hours of patrol time patrol support time, 3 disability time in the neighborhoods, in these clinics, in these other support sites that were of course 4 5 volunteer by our members. A number of DPR members were at 6 high risk of COVID complications and have taken a leave 7 of absence at various points. We also know that we've, had some retirements, we've had some separations from 8 folks that are just as high of a risk people. 9

RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: We did that. Most of 10 our monthly meetings had moved online or to conference 11 12 calls, but we did manage to stay in touch with one 13 another and with the Police Department. Unfortunately, the planned Reserve Academy class that was planned for 14 15 the fall of 2020 was postponed and has been greenlit for 16 the fall of 2021. Nearly all sporting concerts and festival events were canceled, enforcing the Reserve to 17 assist in other functional areas. In our mat topic. When 18 19 you hear from DC Fitzgerald about the manpower challenges that we've had, the Reserve Corps has stepped up to work 20 in support capacities that these officers on the street 21 can work more efficiently. We, come in oftentimes behind 2.2 23 sworn officers to help them in the course of their duties and running errands for them, providing extra safety and 24 security on scenes which we've seen particularly 25



1 throughout some of the protest activity that happened 2 last year. Significantly we've had no documented cases of COVID-19 for Reservist from any Police Department. We 3 did, unfortunately, have a number of Reservists that 4 contracted COVID 19, but none of them actually contracted 5 it from the department. Approximately two-thirds of the 6 reserve members today have received at least one dose of 7 the vaccine. And most excitedly for us, recruitment has 8 continued. We still have folks that are entering the 9 application process to join the Reserve. 10

11 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: I'd like to bring to 12 bring Board a Memorium announcement here. I think some of 13 you have seen that Reserve Commander Henry Dodge, who was 14 the longest-serving member of the Reserve Corps, not just 15 the longest-serving reserve corps, but certainly one of 16 the longest-serving members of the Police Department with 17 53 years of service passed away earlier this year. Dodge stepped down from active command in the Reserve Corps 18 19 last decade but was still an institution in our agency. And we will feel his loss for guite some time. He was 20 known as the Dean of the Police Reserve Corps. He chaired 21 our executive meetings, but more importantly, he fostered 2.2 relationships across the Department and across the region 23 with other departments. Certainly in Dearborn and in 24 25 Haven and other places Commander Dodge was really known



Page 59

1 as the face of the Reserve Corps for very long. We will 2 miss him dearly. His badge has been retired and a plaque 3 commemorating his service will be placed in the official 4 archive.

RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Yes, this year we are 5 6 finally launching our long-awaited Detroit Police Reserve, continuing education program. This really has 7 five main functional areas. We have a legal training 8 9 component, which is a review of statutory and case law, and most importantly, the impact of that law on reserve 10 officers which, you know, is different than for regular 11 12 police officers. Training and departmental policies and 13 procedures and new reserve corps procedures. Again, 14 falling in line with the commonly accepted standards of 15 the Police Department. Continuing training and use of 16 force, de-escalation communication, and emotional 17 intelligence. And most importantly for our organization's civic training, we are ambassadors. We made our members 18 19 aware of city county and state resources, so that we're able to come in again behind those sworn members and 20 continue to work with especially crime victims or other 21 members of the community that needs information. We can 2.2 23 provide that information to them and allow those officers [38:17 inaudible] they're up and move on. 24

25 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: I have some numbers



1 of interest for you. Reserve officers contributed over 2 2,900 hours, the Detroit Police Department in 2020. Now, this was a decrease for 2019, but it was exceptional in 3 light of the pandemic. And to answer some concerns about 4 where we spend our time, about 65% of our detailed time 5 6 is spent in the neighborhood community, not [38:43] inaudible]. In the past 12 months, Reserve officers 7 conducted over 700 special attention site visits, 8 9 Greenlight locations. And most importantly to this Board, we were present for 32 days of protest in 2020. And 10 during those 32 days, we had zero citizens' complaints or 11 12 use of force incidents involving Police Reserve officers 13 during our entire engagement during that event, which is 14 pretty remarkable considering the high level of passion 15 amongst some members. But we are able to avoid any use of 16 force incidents.

17 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Just the highlight of our major initiatives for 2021, we will continue to 18 19 increase recruitment into the Police reserve Corps. We are currently assembling a new class with a target start 20 date of September. We will be helping in Chief White's 21 downtown safety and security initiative. We've already 2.2 23 had a presence down in the Greektown area. We will expand that with a focus on assisting the downtown services and 24 the overtime units with weekend support for both the 25



Page 61

1 Greektown and the central business areas, particularly 2 some of the drag racing areas that need to be closed 3 down. Again, once the sworn members get those areas under control the Reserves can come in and maintain those 4 shutdowns that those street shutdowns will allow sworn 5 6 personnel to move on to the next task. We are preparing to launch a partnership with the citizens' radio patrol 7 with which we will partner with them and NPOs to help 8 address quality of life issues to document these 9 qualities of life issues. So (Audio Distortion). We are 10 expanding reserve member participation in community-11 12 focused events, and we are extremely excited about this. 13 We are increasing opportunities for reserve members to 14 expand beyond traditional frontline reserve duties and 15 into other duties such as youth mentorship through pal, 16 community wellness, and other civic outreach activities. 17 I'll speak more on that in a moment. And again, I did mention the continuing education program. We tried to get 18 19 that off the ground last year, but we were simply unable during the pandemic. 20

CHAIRPERSON BELL: Chief Lewis, you have one minute a
wrapped up, you are over your time.

RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Okay, great. Thank
you, sir. I'm just going to go through here real quick.
Our two big focuses are recruitment. We want to get our



1 numbers up into the Police Reserve Corps and again, our community division is a very significant effort here. 2 This is going to allow a lot of our long serving members 3 with 25, 35, 40 years in the Reserve Corps to transition 4 5 over to a more community service focus. We're going to 6 retain these members and hope it (Audio Distortion) together. And now, it's an incredible expansion of the 7 opportunities to get our folks working with you. And 8 since I am overtime, I will now move on to questions. 9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Commissioners, do we have 10 any questions for Chief Lewis Reservist? Yes, ma'am, 11 12 Commissioner Burch. Yes. Ma'am.

13 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I thank you.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Bernard afterward. 15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. I just want to say the 16 veterans also, can they be used in place of say if the 17 recruiting officers are unavailable, can they visit an 18 event and register people that wish to be police

19 officers; Do they do that?

20 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Reserve Police 21 Reservists don't typically handle recruiting for sworn 22 members. That being said, we can gather information and 23 make sure that that information goes over. We have a 24 partnership with recruiting. We would not step into their 25 shoes, but we would make sure that we're there to answer



questions and make sure that they are connected with
 somebody for recruiting.

3 COMMISSIONER BURCH: So they can't do it, bottom4 line. They can't do it.

5 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: We can't screen them, 6 but we can make sure that they aren't lost in the 7 shuffle. And we can follow up until a member of the 8 recruiting staff gets involved and can maintain that 9 relationship until the.

10 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. I just want you to know, 11 they've been invited the recruiters many times to all of 12 the markets that we have on the east coast and the west 13 side. So they have to take advantage of that, sir. 14 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Sure. Absolutely.

15 Yes.

16 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I just want to congratulate 17 you on an excellent report. I frequently get questions 18 about being on the reserves or actually a banker asked me, Chase Bank and he wanted to be on the, on the 19 20 reserves. And so this report is really good. I can share 21 it and you give to people who want to be on the reserves, so they'll really know what they're signing up for and 2.2 how it works. Thank you very much. 23

24 RESERVE ASSISTANT CHIEF LEWIS: Thank you,

25 Commissioner. And we would love to have them. We're in a



Page 64

1 recruiting blitz right now.

2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: And he speaks Spanish. Okay. 3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Assistant Chief Lewis. I wanted to say on behalf of the Board we know there's a 4 5 bill pending in Lansing. We hope to interact with that 6 bill shortly. And I want to say I started my career in 71, 72, working with the Reserves and I worked with them 7 in four different Precincts and they are main stay. They 8 are more trained, more certified in this day and age. So 9 they relieve officer of duties they shouldn't have to 10 perform. Give it to the Reserve, but they do an extra 11 12 job. And you heard from the training process Commander 13 Hope, thank you for interaction, that leadership. So I 14 think it's crucial that we're able to maintain the 15 Reserve as if you'd like Commissioner Bernard, if you 16 know, anyone want to join, not the DPD, who want to join the Reserve, then recruit them. And you know who to 17 18 contact. Thank you. We move on to, Ms. White,

MRS. WHITE: Yes. Through the Chair, Honorable Board, if you would please refer to the agenda that lists all of the incoming correspondence for this week and they are as follows the DPD facial recognition report for the week of May 31st through June 6th, 2021. And please note that staff continues to review those reports and submits various data reports to you for your consideration in



1 that regard. The second item, the request for change of duty status to administrative leave without pay, but with 2 medical benefits for police officer Alexander [01:25:00 3 inaudible] badge 2766 assigned to the 6th Precinct. Again 4 staff and the city law department are in the process of 5 reviewing that packet submission. And we'll share a 6 report for your consideration from the city law, and from 7 the BOPC staff. You also received the Human Resources 8 Report as well as various other staff reports consisting 9 of, but not limited to the MCOLE summary that was held 10 yesterday, entitled role of first-line supervisors and 11 12 facilitating change in law enforcement.

13 MRS. WHITE: You also received a staff memorandum 14 regarding the summary of the Detroit Charter Revision 15 proposed changes. And please note that the Detroit women 16 league of voters will be hosting a panel discussion this coming Tuesday from 6 to 7:30 PM via zoom entitled 17 redesigning the Detroit Police Commission, where they 18 19 will be exploring the recommendations made to the City 20 Charter Revision Commission in regards to the Board of Police Commissioners and the police and exploring those 21 impacts. I will be speaking on the panel discussion as 2.2 23 well as a representative from the City Charter Revision 24 Commission. Additionally, you also received various correspondences about the annual Board training that is 25



1 upcoming June 25th through June 26 for your 2 consideration. And that training is a very extensive training. We've been working very hard to put that 3 information together for you. So we look forward to 4 holding that panel discussion and those various training 5 workshops in connection with the DPD department 6 executives, as well as other external instructors who 7 will be providing various trainings for your 8 consideration. And that concludes the incoming 9 correspondence. Thank you. 10 11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. White. Unfinished 12 business. New business. 13 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, unfinished, wait, wait. COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. Unfinished is I want 14 15 everybody to know the two city reservoir project is going 16 very well. The youngest artist that we have is 14 years 17 old. So he's probably, I think he's like 16 now. Because we started this reservoir project in 2018, but because of 18 19 COVID, it was cut down, but I want to thank Commissioner

20 Brown and Hope. When we began that project, they were out 21 there with us. So I just want to let everybody know we're 22 back into business with the support of Rochelle Reilly 23 and also Sam Koons under the direction of the Mayor. So 24 letting you know the murals are coming back on the 25 Reservoir. Isn't that wonderful.



Page 67

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am, that is great. CHAIRPERSON BELL: New business. Announcement. 2 3 COMMISSIONER JONES: Well through the Chair. Well I'm pleased to announce. I would like for the community to 4 mark their calendars. We'll be having our Walk for 5 6 Justice 3, downtown at Rivard Atwater. This is going to be on June 19th. This is a walk for justice and we're 7 inviting families to come out, who have had a family 8 9 member victimized by gun violence. Homicide detective, especially with Captain May. They've been absolutely 10 11 supper with regards to, communicating with families that 12 have had members lost to gun violence, but maybe they 13 hadn't quite been getting updates or had not been able to 14 get in touch with the detective in charge. They've been 15 absolutely fabulous with providing them with 16 opportunities to bridge that gap between themselves and the community to let them know that they're concerned 17 about the justice that their loved one is doing, that the 18 19 family is doing. So we invite you again. June 19th Revard Atwater Street, 9:00 AM. That's on a Saturday at 9:00 AM 20 21 come out and we definitely want to thank Captain May and 2.2 also Commander Hope for her participation in our previous 23 walks. Thank you very much, and I look forward to seeing 24 you there. We're going to help to get you some answers. COMMISSIONER BURCH: New business. 25



Page 68

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: No ma'am, we had announcement. COMMISSIONER BURCH: Well this is announcement. This 2 3 is an announcement Chair Bell. I just want to say that if anybody's looking for a job at Angela's at Belmont or 4 5 Southfield, the famous Angela store, if you're looking 6 for a position as a greeter you know how that is, a famous store like it is. And also at that store, we're 7 8 going to have a book signing that's by Archer Dennard. 9 And that's to all of the people that used to work at the student transportation department at Matt and Trumbo 10 called the east side bus terminal. That was Mr. Archie 11 12 denied. So we're going to have a book signing. All these 13 good things are coming up now because people are free to 14 go back outside. So anybody needs a job, a woman or 15 gentlemen, give me a call and we can discuss it. Thank 16 you, Chair Bell.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Mr. Brown.

MR. ROB BROWN: Yes. Good afternoon. Mr. Chair, and this Honorable Board, the announcements for the BOPC next virtual meetings, June 17th, 2021 at 3:00 PM, June 24th, 2021 at 3:00 PM. And Mr. Chair, I go straight into our [01:30:23 inaudible] public comments.

MR. ROB BROWN: Thank you. Your first 3 speakers
would be Lieutenant Mark, Young LSA, President CAC Chair,
Scotty Bowman, and Ms. Bernice Smith. Lieutenant Young.



1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Next speaker. LIEUTENANT YOUNG: Hello, can you hear me? 2 3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir. Go ahead. LIEUTENANT YOUNG: First of all, I wanted to say to 4 5 my colleagues most of my colleagues who are going to 6 sacrifice this summer and time away from their family, 7 you are appreciated more than, you know. What's really sad is that you have to do so based on speeders, 8 drifters, lawlessness of individuals that have been 9 empowered with criminality, and also people want to come 10 down to Greektown and destroy our great city. 11 12 LIEUTENANT YOUNG: Those men and women deserve all 13 that they could get from this from the city. And I asked 14 you again to be mindful of your rhetoric because some of 15 the same rhetoric empowers some of the actions of these 16 people. We've always had an outstanding police department 17 in the City of Detroit and we've been perfect, no, but we've been better than most. And we're going to continue 18 19 to be better. I yield the rest of my time? CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. 20 21 MR. ROB BROWN: Mr. Bowman. Mr. Bowman. 2.2 MR. BOWMAN: Okay. I was looking for the unmute 23 thing. Can you hear me? 24 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes. 25 MR. BOWMAN: Okay, great. Well, first of all, I just



Page 70

1 wanted to say that, you know, in the past week I've heard a lot of misinformation. I could guess I could put it 2 together and call it another example of the big lie 3 tactic at work. Specifically regarding charter revisions. 4 I was on the charter revision focus group to work on 5 portions regarding the Board of Police Commissioners and 6 civilian oversight of the Detroit Police Department, and 7 I know that what we would be doing would be saving money, 8 not costing the city more money. The big lie is that the 9 charter revision would bankrupt the city. And that's just 10 not true. People will use that though, if they're 11 12 objecting to other things that might be more popular, for 13 instance Chairman or de facto Chairman at sometimes Bell, 14 he wanted to have half as many meetings and we didn't put 15 that in there because we've seen the Board of Police 16 Commissioners is way too important for that. However, not 17 to fear if you think, you know, a meeting every week is too much, we did better than every other week. You don't 18 19 have to go to any meetings because you would have a conflict of interest. We did that. We got rid of the use 20 21 of military equipment by the police, the use of chemical 2.2 weapons by police and various things that really aren't should not be part of policing. We have a revision that 23 provides for police that are friendly to the community 24 and also can enforce the laws to protect the community 25



Page 71

1 from criminals. Thank you.

2 MR. ROB BROWN: Miss Bernie Smith.

3 MS. SMITH: Commissioners, good afternoon. I am very, very glad that Mark Young was attending the DABO Center 4 5 the other day and he spoke about the police department 6 and he was very, very, he was just upsetting, the fact that a lot of us people are not giving our police 7 department enough credit. And I agree with him. We do 8 9 need to give our police more credit than what they have been given. First of all, we could give them a raise. 10 I've said that for the last two years, but in the 11 12 meantime, we'll just wait and see what happens. I 13 wouldn't like to let the Detroiters know, do not do not. 14 Again. I say, go into any boothe and vote for that 15 charter because the fact is we know what's going on. They 16 will have to use monies and we need the money for the 17 Detroiters to pay their taxes, pay their water bill or whatever it needs to be done. 18

MS. SMITH: So I advise you to be very careful when you see what's going on in regards to this coming election. Also, I would like to let all of, you know, we're going to be good this year. As far as our crime is concerned because we got a good Chief that's coming into office. And I do hope that he will be able to counteract a lot of this crime that's going on. Because I'm so tired



Page 72

1 of seeing it on TV all the time, shooting and killings 2 and going out, this is a better city and we know better and we should do better. Again. I give kudos to my police 3 department and I hope they continue to be the best that 4 5 they can have, especially here in Detroit, because I know they're going to get better. All we have to do is just 6 7 give them a lot of courage and give them some kind of in other words, just tell them you love them and for them 8 to be careful, that's all I got to say. Take care. 9 MR. ROB BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next three speakers 10 will be Mrs. Sharon Parnell, followed by Mr. Tim Johnson, 11 12 followed by Minister Eric Blunt. Ms. Parnell. 13 MS. PARNELL: Hi, the 2nd Precinct is my Precinct. I 14 do appreciate my Commander, Captain. All my MPO is I'm 15 not going to name no names because I don't want to leave 16 nobody out. Thank you for all you do for me. And I have 17 no problem with calling about the speeding and the donuts they come out and they take care of everything. And I 18 19 just want to say, congratulations, Elaine and Captain Potts on your new positions over in Ohio. If they don't 20 want you, come on back to Detroit. We love you and take 21 care and be safe. I yield my time. 2.2 23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Mr. Brown.

24 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes, sir.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Can you just pause one second. I



want to knowledge, Ms. Butler, who was the president of the 2nd Precinct police community relations for doing outstanding job? She engaged the community in so many areas and normally, she would attend our meeting in person, but looking forward to perhaps next month her involvement, but she's a key part of that Precinct. Thank you, Mr. Brown, go ahead.

8 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes, sir. Mr. Johnson,

MR. JOHNSON: I say, thank you to the Commissioners 9 and definitely to the brave men and women at DPD. 10 Definitely appreciate what you do, sorry that you're 11 dealing with all this rhetoric right now that, that you 12 13 don't deserve and just know that it's a bunch of people 14 out here that really support you despite what you might 15 see in the media. Two comments, number one, definitely 16 just want to advocate for the speed sticks. So therefore 17 you all can have the tools that you need to deal with the drifters and also just really congratulations on getting 18 19 all of these illegal guns off the street with the work that you're doing. Because I think definitely when we 20 have cracks in our foundation with people getting away 21 with speeding it normally leads to other crimes and 2.2 23 things like that. So deaf and good job on that. MR. JOHNSON: And number two, I didn't hear, I heard 24

25 about noise ordinances being broken, but a lot of people



Page 73

in my district, district five or dealing with the 1 drifters, not only going up and down the street, but 2 playing their music very loud and fireworks that, you 3 know, one and two in the morning, along with the modified 4 5 mufflers. I did hear next door, that the police are going to be equipped with radar to you know, check for sound 6 decibel levels. So I definitely just want to advocate and 7 support for that because, you know, imagine if you can 8 pull over some additional people for that, how many 9 additional guns and different things that you can get off 10 the street. So that's all I have to say. Thank you. 11 MR. ROB BROWN: Minister Eric Blunt. 12 13 MINISTER BLUNT: Yes. Board. Can you hear me? 14 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes. 15 MINISTER BLUNT: Yes, Board. Can you hear me? 16 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes. MINISTER BLUNT: I'm Minister Eric Blunt from Sacred 17 Heart Catholic Church in Detroit. This week, the Justice 18 Department will require officers and all of its law 19 enforcement agencies to wear body-worn cameras when 20 21 making arrests and serving warrants. Deputy Attorney General, Lisa Monaco issued this directive to the FBI, 2.2 23 the US Marshall Service, Drug Enforcement Administration, Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms, and Explosives, 24 requiring these agencies to develop a policy within 30 25



days. Organizations committed to justice in regards to 1 police misconduct will continue to demand that DPD, and 2 now all of these federal agencies quickly release body-3 worn camera footage on all arrests planned and unplanned 4 5 or serving search warrants. This requirement is an 6 important turn for justice and transparency as it signals a ray of hope for the beginning of a process of justice. 7 In the case of disciplines, if suspension without pay, 8 why not include without benefits, put some teeth behind 9 your discipline. As far as the elections go, is this the 10 first time in the history of this Commission that both 11 12 the Chair and the Vice-Chair are appointees? If so, this 13 is a real problem due to each appointee continuously 14 practicing the art of deception by materially, 15 misrepresenting themselves by giving themselves the false 16 title of At-Large. Appointees on this Board also any Commissioner receiving funds from the city with an 17 organization or agency bearing their names should resign 18 19 or be removed.

20 MR. ROB BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next three speakers 21 would be Mr. Jerry Sanders., followed by Ms. Brenda 22 Butler, followed by Mac Farr.

MR. SANDERS: Board, this is, am I being heard?MR. ROB BROWN: Yes.

25 MR. SANDERS: Okay. I have a few statements I want to



Page 75

Page 76

1 make. I stay on the Southwest side of Detroit, near Michigan and McGraw over by Livernois. I have a 2 continuous problem that I've called 911 about ATVs and 3 motorbikes being rolled up and down my street at 4 5 excessive speeds. I've stopped the police numerous times, 6 going down the street, no more than two cars behind the ATVs asking them what they're going to do about this. 7 I've called 911. I've called the Precincts. I've been 8 told that 911 should be called just to be told by the 9 police officers that they cannot pursue. They cannot do 10 anything. I've had officers watched the ATVs go by and 11 12 not do a thing, not turn a siren on, not turn a horn on, 13 not stopping them and saying, do not do this. MR. SANDERS: I am concerned because we have given 14 15 away the comforts of the community to save the city 16 negligent lawsuits, I should not have to suffer because 17 the city has been sued for causing accidents after pursuing an ATV. And now I have to listen to this uproar 18 19 through my community. I'm concerned that this is what the city has decided to do, because they are not thinking 20 about the tax paying good citizens. They're thinking 21 about the criminals and their pockets. So I would like to 2.2 know when something is going to be changed and something 23 24 is going to show a sign of sunshine for the good citizens of the city. And the criminals are actually going to get 25



1 put behind bars and restrained from doing the things that are causing this community to be depleted and 2 dilapidated. Thank you. I yield the rest of my time. 3 4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Mr. Brown. 5 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes, sir. CHAIRPERSON BELL: I don't recall the speaker's name, 6 7 but I would hope that he reaches out to the Commanding Officer of his Precinct and also the Deputy Chief. So if 8 he want to text us, we would make sure we do a follow 9 with his concerns. So it concerned me that he raised this 10 11 issue, but we're addressing those issues. So if we have 12 that information, we can make sure we're able to contact 13 his Commanding Officer at his Precinct and also the Deputy Chief of that area. Mr. Brown, go ahead. 14 15 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes, sir. Ms. Brenda Butler. 16 MS. BUTLER: Good afternoon, Commissioner and guests. 17 My question is on a past meeting, the public requested a presentation by the police department on the no-knock 18 19 warrant. So has that presentation been done because I did miss a couple of meetings? 20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We will share that information 21 with you in terms of some form while we meet. We ask 2.2 23 address on issues so we would do a follow-up for the

24 public and for you. Thank you.

25 MS. BUTLER: You say you would share what now?



CHAIRPERSON BELL: Your concerns, we would address
 those concerns.

3 MS. BUTLER: Okay. But when is the public, going to get a presentation by the police department? 4 5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I just want to briefly respond to 6 you, okay. We're going to move on. Go ahead, your time is 7 running. MS. BUTLER: My time is not up. 8 9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I said your time is running, go 10 ahead. 11 MS. BUTLER: Okay. Thank you. Thank you. Okay. So, my 12 question will be again to our new Chairman of the Board, Commissioner Holley. Could you please see that the public 13 14 gets a presentation on the no-knock warrant because we 15 have an understanding that there is a bill that's being 16 listened to and put forth in Lansing regarding the no-17 knock warrant in Michigan? So please, please have a presentation for the public on this matter. Thanks a lot 18 19 and have a great evening.

20 MR. FARR: Good afternoon. My name is Mac Farr. I 21 live in Pingree Park. We are pleased to see a modest 22 decrease in the volume severity and intensity of drag 23 racing in Detroit. And we would also like to use this 24 opportunity to urge the Board of Police Commissioners, to 25 direct the command staff of the department, to accelerate



1 the acquisition and deployment of stop sticks. With the recent addition of the helicopter unit, there is a 2 noticeable decrease in drag racing, but there is still 3 much to do in our neighborhoods for traffic calling. 4 Residents believe that officers in squad cars need 5 6 additional resources to apprehend drag racers and drifters. Stop sticks are an effective demobilization 7 device that when used correctly can deflate tires on the 8 9 offending vehicles. Part of the reason that these drag racers and drifters come to Detroit has to do with the 10 widespread perception that officers here are powerless to 11 12 enforce. Please help to hasten this process to get stop 13 sticks in the field this summer. They are an effective 14 tool that are used in many, many locations, including 15 with the Michigan State Police, as well as other 16 municipal departments in the state of Michigan. We believe that Detroit deserves the same tools as our other 17 suburban counterparts. And I'd also like to use this 18 19 opportunity to also voice support for the rank and file police in the department, and also to urge folks to vote 20 against the charter amendment. Thank you. 21

MR. ROB BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next 3 speakers will be Ms. Michelle George, followed by Ms. Brenda Hill followed by Ms. Tawana Petty. Ms. George.

25 MS. GEORGE: Yes, sir. Hi, Mr. Brown. To Chairman



Page 79

Page 80

Bell. Can you hear me, Mr. Brown, can you hear me?
 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes.

3 MS. GEORGE: Okay. Thank you. To Chairman Bell and the Honorable Board. Well, first of all, I want to 4 5 congratulate the Chiefs Elaine Bryant and Captain Potts 6 and Assistant Chief Stair. We are losing some remarkable 7 talent, so I know they would do an excellent job in Columbus, also I know Commander Hope is still here. So we 8 9 thank God for Commander Hope as well. I also want to say Commander Mounsey is doing an excellent job and the 10 officers at the second police Precinct. To Lieutenant 11 12 Young, I know we do pray for the officers. I know I do. 13 Our prayer team, we pray for the officers and we pray for 14 you all as well. I don't like to say with respect mother 15 Bernice. Mother Bernice that charter, we have the right 16 to put that charter on the ballot. They were not honest 17 with that charter and I'm on the call with the financial 18 review commission when they do the presentation. And we 19 sat on those calls. I was one of them for 4 hours putting things in that charter, but what's not going to happen is 20 21 if they're going to tell us not to at least vote. That's 2.2 the issue. They don't want to go on national TV in a 23 minute. So somebody about to do a talk about it nationally anyway. No, we're going to vote on that 24 25 charter. We're going to vote, but like you said, we have



1 a right to vote and thank the Lord for the Michigan 2 Supreme Court that put a stay on that. So I just want to say that was my comment with the officers and everything 3 like that. We do pray for Detroit officers and are going 4 5 to make sure that they get more money and we do encourage 6 because we know that they're putting their lives on the 7 line every day, but, you know, we have issues with law enforcement across the country. One has nothing to do 8 with the other, but we do pray for our officers. I want 9 Lieutenant Young to know that. 10

- 11 MR. ROB BROWN: Ms. Brenda Hill.
- 12 MS. HILL: Yes. Can you hear me?
- 13 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes.

14 MS. HILL: Yes. I have three issues. It was just a travesty committed by the Commission today. We have two 15 16 unelected Commissioners as far as Chair and Vice-Chair. 17 That should never happen. I mean, I don't believe Chair Bell should be chief pooper scooper, but however he was 18 19 elected and there should at least be one person that was elected by the people. And that's what this city is 20 voters and not appointments, and that should be redone. 21 And you can see how the vote went right along who was 2.2 23 appointed lines. Also for Chair to chastise Linda Bernard for stating that Ferndale and Royal Oak police hasn't 24 been terrorizing. And I'll use the word, terrorizing our 25



Page 82

1 people for decades, for centuries, as a matter of fact, since their inception is a fact. Gross Point and all the 2 cities outside of 8-mile Road. And for Chair Bell to say, 3 well, just followed the law. That has not been an issue, 4 5 it's being black and living in Detroit that has been an 6 issue. And they have been terrorizing people over and over and over again. I could go further and I'd like to 7 thank Captain Potts and Deputy Chief Elaine Bryant. I've 8 9 worked with both of them personally. They've been fantastic and thank you for your service and you need to 10 get rid of facial recognition. It does not work. It has 11 12 not worked. And that's a terrorist act on this city. 13 MR. ROB BROWN: Ms. Tawana Petty. 14 MS. PETTY: Yes. Can you hear me? 15 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes. 16 MS. PETTY: There's always an uproar when black youth

17 are engaged in dehumanizing behavior, but a lot of young people engage in this type of behavior realized a long 18 19 time ago that they are only visible to the people around them when they start acting out. The fact that many 20 belong to family, struggling with poverty unaffordable 21 water, unaffordable housing, lack of internet access and 2.2 23 inadequate education and recreational activities only becomes visible after those young people are either 24 harmed or do something considered illegal. Their 25



Page 83

1 frustrations and anger about their living conditions only becomes a concern for many when that anger leaves the 2 privacy of those young folk homes and makes it out into 3 the streets. At some point, respiriting, empathy, and 4 compassion for our young people and their conditions has 5 6 to enter the strategy. If we don't care about our youth, who will, if we don't make sure they are eating, well-7 hydrated have safe spaces to live and play, who will? 8 It's very sad that proposal P is under attack when it's 9 one of our last chances to put some humane practices in 10 place. None of the folks speaking against it have 11 12 participated in the process yet they are supporting voter 13 suppression. I've worked with so many young people in 14 Detroit who have told me that nobody gives a F about them 15 and it breaks my heart. Our babies shouldn't have to 16 navigate this world feeling unloved. At some point, their 17 wellbeing has to become a priority prior to their engagement with the legal system. History and the present 18 19 has taught us time and time again that we will not be able to surveil and police our way into a better society. 20 21 We all want to return home safe to our families. Safer communities are not blighted or disinvested in neglected 2.2 23 or abandoned. They are resources. The formula is there. If you need to see it, look at the communities where non-24 black children are actually treated like human beings. 25



Page 84

1 Thank you.

2 MR. ROB BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next and last speaker 3 would be Ms. Brenda Andrews.

4 MS. ANDREWS: Okay. Can you hear me?

5 MR. ROB BROWN: Yes.

6 MS. ANDREWS: Okay, great. Thank you so much. Good 7 afternoon. Good evening. Chairperson Bell, Commissioners. My Commissioner, Linda Bernard, DC Fitzgerald, and his 8 staff, and also to Interim Chief White. I am Brenda Goss 9 Andrews, retired Detroit Police Deputy Chief. As 10 11 Commander, I was in charge HR and personnel, which 12 included police recruiting, selection and hiring. The 13 fact of those leaving our departments after getting 14 training has been going on for many years, much too long. 15 I raised this issue in the latter part of 1999 into the 16 21st century. So since so many of our recruits were 17 getting trained and leaving sometimes right after they graduated the academy to other agencies. In fact, I used 18 19 to keep a growing list of what agencies these recruits went to. We were unable to get support from the 20 legislature at that time. And there might be some court 21 documents that indicated that this was unconstitutional. 2.2 23 I hope this will not be a hurdle today. I support this long overdue bill. I support the resolution of this 24 Honorable Commission put forward, and I lend my voice and 25



my experience to this discussion. I will reach out to 1 2 Representative Carter and anyone else that is interested in may reach out to me as well. Thank you so much for 3 your service. 4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. 5 MR. ROB BROWN: That was the last speaker, Mr. Chair. 6 7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Mr. Brown. The Chair 8 will make a motion for adjournment. 9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved. 10 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Support. 11 COMMISSIONER JONES: Support. 12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been properly moved and 13 supported. Discussion. Those in favor, aye. 14 COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those oppose. We stand adjourned. 16 Thank you. 17 (Meeting Adjourned at 4:55p.m.) 18 19 20 21 2.2 23 24 25



)))

STATE OF MICHIGAN COUNTY OF WAYNE

RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE AND NOTARIZATION

I, Donald Handyside, Court Recorder, do hereby certify that on June 10, 2021, at 2:57p.m., I did record the Detroit BOPC meeting, the same being later reduced to typewriting and that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcription of said electronic recording taken at such time and place.

I further certify that I am not related to or employed by any party of this cause or their respective counsel.

DONALD HANDYSIDE (CER 1464) Notary Public My Commission Expires: 5/6/2020



06/10/2021	0	6,	/1	0/	2	0	21
------------	---	----	----	----	---	---	----

	14 66:16	2019 60:3		
\$	14% 44:24	2019-2020 23:1		
\$10 37:1	15 27:9	2020 40:11 55:16,17 57:1,15		
\$10,000 22:3	159 45:15	60:2,10		
\$6,000 22:2	16 41:11 66:17	2021 8:5 23:5 40:11 57:1,16 60:18 64:23 68:20,21		
	16% 27:7	2023 40:15		
(160 41:11	2079 41:10		
(313) 3:9	162 40:14	21st 84:16		
*	16:44 17:1	22 40:22,23 41:7,17		
	17% 27:23 40:8	22% 27:9		
* 9 4:1,10	17:59 18:7	22nd 36:4		
	17th 68:20	231 40:10		
0	18 27:7 41:12	24 40:19,24		
01:25:00 65:3	18:52 19:3	24-hour 3:1		
01:30:23 68:22	18th 41:23	24th 68:20		
	19 45:3 58:5	25 24:14 31:8 37:1 41:1 62:4		
1	19% 22:18	25-year 13:16		
1 5:23,25 12:14 17:21 19:20	194 40:12	25th 41:25 66:1		
20:7	1999 84:15	26 66:1		
1,935 41:2	19th 67:7,19	27% 44:23		
10 15:16 24:20 29:9,10 32:13 41:14	1st 18:24 40:11	2728 46:11		
103 27:8	2	2766 65:4		
105 43:15		28 40:18,21 41:2		
106 40:1	2 6:1,4 12:16 17:23 20:10 28:5 34:13 40:19,24 41:4,10 46:9	28th 40:22		
10 ¼ 43:6	48:4	29 41:1		
11 35:8,22 45:3 48:8 49:24	2,566 39:24	29% 44:20 45:23		
12 15:6 41:7,20,21 60:7	2,600 56:25 57:2	296 41:2		
12% 44:17	2,672 40:2	29th 23:5		
120 55:7	2,900 60:2	2nd 15:15 42:18,24 43:5,11,		
125 40:8	20 26:3 38:7 55:24	15,20,21,25 44:2,12,24 45:12 46:3 47:6,15,24 49:22 50:12,		
12th 51:17,24	20% 44:21	40.3 47.0, 15,24 49.22 50.12, 17 51:15,16 53:2 72:13 73:2		
13 40:19	2000 28:15			
13% 27:22	2010 43:8	3		
136 43:12	2018 45:23 66:18	3 6:8 12:17 17:25 20:13 26:4		



28:7 41:1,13 45:24 67:6 68:23 79:22 **3,187** 40:9 3,310 40:12 3,418 40:10 **3.6** 34:11 30 12:11 27:11,22 74:25 **30%** 27:8 44:16 **300** 31:3 **31** 43:16 45:15 **313 596-1830** 2:22 **313 596-1831** 3:2 313 596-2499 3:1 **318** 40:14 **31st** 40:11,25 64:23 32 40:13,20 60:10,11 **34%** 44:20 **35** 40:21 41:8 62:4 **354** 40:16 **360** 3:11 **38:17** 59:24 **38:43** 60:6 3:00 3:21 68:20,21 3rd 6:10 8:5

4

4 6:13 12:18 14:8 18:13 20:16 21:7 28:9 32:17 40:21 41:13 43:9 80:19 **4%** 40:1 **40** 62:4 **400** 45:5 4000 28:14 41 40:18,19 **421** 40:15

06/10/2021							
447 45:5							
46% 44:14							
4747 15:1 23:6,15							
49 41:11							
4:00 3:21 4:11							
4:55p.m 85:18							
4th 41:25							
E							
5							
5 6:14 12:22 18:14 20:16 25:24 41:1							
50% 46:18							
53 58:17							
57 39:25							
572 41:19							
58,000 43:7							
596-1830 3:10							
_							
6							
6 6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21 624 40:8							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21 624 40:8 65% 60:5							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21 624 40:8 65% 60:5 67 40:18 6th 64:23 65:4							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21 624 40:8 65% 60:5 67 40:18							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21 624 40:8 65% 60:5 67 40:18 6th 64:23 65:4							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21 624 40:8 65% 60:5 67 40:18 6th 64:23 65:4 7 7 6:18,20,25 18:16 20:19							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21 624 40:8 65% 60:5 67 40:18 6th 64:23 65:4 7 7 6:18,20,25 18:16 20:19 41:10							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21 624 40:8 65% 60:5 67 40:18 6th 64:23 65:4 7 7 6:18,20,25 18:16 20:19 41:10 70 51:11							
6 6:14,16 18:14 20:17 21:5 44:4 65:17 6,800 3:13 60 40:20,21 624 40:8 65% 60:5 67 40:18 6th 64:23 65:4 7 7 6:18,20,25 18:16 20:19 41:10 70 51:11 700 60:8							

73% 44:13 45:4 **74** 41:1 **746** 40:8 76 41:12 45:17 **7:30** 65:17 **7th** 41:22

8

8 15:7 **8%** 44:17 8-mile 51:4,18 52:5 53:2 82:3 **80** 45:13 **83%** 40:8

9

9 41:14 **911** 28:18 38:21 39:2 76:3,8,9 **96%** 39:24 **99** 40:20 **9:00** 67:20

Α

abandoned 83:23 abatement 29:22 **abide** 52:8 ability 37:20 **absence** 41:8 57:7 **absolute** 30:5 34:23 absolutely 53:3 63:14 67:10, 15 AC 31:7 36:14 academy 22:11,14,19 23:4 40:22 57:14 84:18 accelerate 78:25 accept 18:4,7 19:24,25 20:1,3



accepted 18:13 34:21 59:14 access 4:19 82:22 accessible 29:5 Accessing 2:19 accidents 76:17 accordance 12:24 account 2:9 accounted 7:12 accurate 52:20 acknowledge 4:15 acknowledged 4:12 acquisition 79:1 act 82:12 acting 8:24,25 82:20 action 7:19 14:22 21:11,14 23:12 actions 69:15 active 58:18 actively 44:1 activities 61:16 82:23 activity 58:1 add 50:5 addition 79:2 additional 8:7 28:15 38:17,23, 25 45:10 74:9,10 79:6 **Additionally** 2:11 65:24 address 2:12,13 3:10,20 7:20 11:5,12 15:2 24:6 38:15 45:7 51:23 61:9 77:23 78:1 addressing 35:22 42:12 77:11 Adella 9:2 adequate 23:17 adhere 2:16,17 15:17 adherence 2:19 adjacent 52:6,10

06/10/2021 adjourned 85:15,18 adjournment 85:8 adjustments 55:21 administration 2:22 74:23 administrative 8:18,20 11:11 12:25 65:2 admit 16:9 advance 11:24 advantage 63:13 advise 71:19 Advisory 10:24 advocate 47:11 73:16 74:7 advocating 25:4 affair 13:17,22 afternoon 2:1 4:23,25 5:17,19, 20,24 6:2,9,15,24 7:3,12 26:24 39:21 42:20,21 48:17 50:8 53:13,24 68:18 71:3 77:16 78:20 84:7 afterward 15:25 62:14 age 38:8 64:9 agencies 23:8 74:20,25 75:3 84:18,19 agency 21:22 22:6,15 58:19 75:18 agenda 3:11,23 7:17,20,22 15:18 31:5 64:20 agendas 3:8,14 agents 47:4 aggravated 44:16 45:4 agility 40:17,20 agree 71:8 ahead 32:7,11 39:6 40:6 41:20 69:3 73:7 77:14 78:6,10 **aisle** 24:22 Akbar 8:24 Alcohol 74:24

alerts 3:13 Alexander 65:3 aligned 14:8 allowing 22:25 49:13 amazing 31:9 34:19 Amazon 6:4 ambassadors 59:18 **Amen** 5:11,12 7:10 amendment 79:21 **amount** 15:2 amounts 23:9 Andrews 84:3,4,6,10 Angela 68:5 **Angela's** 68:4 anger 83:1,2 Annie 5:21 announce 67:4 announced 19:15 announcement 58:12 67:2 68:1,2,3 announcements 68:19 annual 14:6 56:6 65:25 **Ansley** 8:24 answering 28:18 answers 67:24 anybody's 68:4 anyone's 36:11 Anytime 38:4 apiece 15:17 apologies 18:3 apologize 53:2 54:5 apparent 11:7 apparently 26:1 **appeared** 40:18,20



 NAISSANCE
 hansonreporting.com

 COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO
 313.567.8100

appears 33:13 applicants 11:25 40:12 application 56:17 58:10 applications 11:22,24 appointed 81:23 appointee 75:13 appointees 75:12,16 appointment 15:3 appointments 81:21 appreciated 69:7 apprehend 79:6 approach 37:3 appropriately 2:17 12:8 52:19 **approval** 7:22 8:5 approved 28:14 33:17 approximately 43:12 44:13 45:15 58:6 **April** 23:5 **Archer** 68:8 Archie 68:11 archive 59:4 archives 23:21 area 15:5 29:13 38:20,23 46:10 60:23 77:14 areas 30:1 46:7.8 52:6 57:18 59:8 61:1,2,3 73:4 arrests 74:21 75:4 art 75:14 Article 14:8 artificial 16:5 artist 66:16 assaults 44:16 45:5 assembling 60:20 assigned 65:4 assist 23:13,15 47:14 56:18

06/10/2021

57:18

assistance 35:12 39:25 41:1,3 52:11 56:11

assistant 7:5 8:20,22 9:19 10:7 11:11 13:16,19 18:2 34:21 37:23 40:2 41:5,7 53:10,16,24 54:4,7,9,14 55:2, 23 56:21 57:10 58:11 59:5,25 60:17 61:23 62:20 63:5,14,24 64:3 80:6 assisting 56:9 60:24 assists 47:11 Association 10:5 43:23 44:3 assumed 14:15 18:12 At-large 6:22,25 75:16 athletic 42:3 attack 83:9 attacked 31:22 attend 31:11 38:13 73:4 attendance 5:1 8:18 14:5 attendant 30:12 attended 13:18,19 14:3 56:5 attendees 2:4,6,8,10 9:25 attending 71:4 attention 37:24 60:8 attorney 6:3 18:3 74:21 attrition 41:5 ATV 76:18 **ATVS** 76:3,7,11 Atwater 67:6,20 audio 61:10 62:6 authority 21:18 authorize 33:9 authorized 22:6 28:12 45:9 **Avenue** 52:6 avoid 60:15

awaiting 40:16

aware 35:17 59:19

aye 8:2,3,10,11 13:7,8 23:24, 25 85:13,14

В

babies 83:15 **back** 14:18 44:9 46:23 47:9 66:22,24 68:14 72:21 background 4:21 34:12 45:25 **bad** 52:4 badge 59:2 65:4 **ballot** 80:16 bang 29:18 Bank 63:19 banker 63:18 bankrupt 70:10 Banks 10:15 bar 32:22 barber 42:4 barricaded 9:12 14:11 26:25 bars 29:4 77:1 **Barton** 43:23 based 12:6 22:7 69:8 **basic** 22:3 basically 11:22 basis 21:25 23:9 30:21 51:8 bearing 75:18 beauty 42:4 **beg** 36:10 began 66:20 begin 53:20 beginning 75:7 behalf 54:15 64:4 behavior 29:24 82:17,18



beings 83:25	blighted 83:22			
Bell 4:22,23 5:1,13,16 6:1,8,	blitz 64:1			
13,14,17,22 7:2,8,13,16 8:1,4, 7,9,12 9:3,7,9,16,23 10:18	Block 43:23 44:1			
11:1 13:6,9,12 14:18 15:10	Blossom 8:19			
16:13,16,19,24 17:3,9,12,20, 23 25 18:6 10 12 16 18 20 22	Blub 43:24			
23,25 18:6,10,12,16,18,20,22, 23 19:10,15,22,25 20:4,7,10,	blue 5:20 13:20			
13,16,19,21,23 21:1,3,9,13	Blunt 72:12 74:12,13,15,17			
23:23 24:1,19 25:2,7,12,16,22 26:2,12,18,21 31:11,12 32:3, 6,10 33:1 35:3 37:9 38:2 39:3, 9,14,19 40:3 42:10,18,21 46:5 47:18,25 50:1 51:2 52:1 53:5, 11,22 61:21 62:10,14 64:3 66:11 67:1,2 68:1,3,16,17 69:1,3,20 70:13 72:23,25 77:4,6,21 78:1,5,9 80:1,3 81:18 82:3 84:7 85:5,7,12,15	board 2:2,23 3:20 4:23 5:17 8:13,17 11:13,14,20,23 12:11, 13,14,19,20 13:2 14:6,23 16:21 19:9 21:17 23:2,11,14 25:2 26:24 42:22 50:8 53:13, 25 54:15,18,22 58:12 60:9 64:4,19 65:20,25 68:19 70:6, 15 74:13,15 75:16,23 78:12, 24 80:4			
Belmont 68:4	Board's 2:16 4:17 8:16 12:24 14:6 23:16 24:5			
belong 82:21	board's 3:3,17			
bench 34:25	bodies 30:4			
benefits 65:3 75:9	body 17:3 21:16			
Bernard 6:2,3,6 11:4,6 12:2 13:10,11 14:4 16:18,20 17:1,	body- 75:3			
7,24 19:2 20:11 32:4,5,7,12,	body-worn 74:20			
25 51:2,3,15 52:24 53:6 62:14 63:16 64:2,15 81:23 84:8 85:9	book 68:8,12			
Bernice 68:25 80:15	books 36:5			
Bernie 71:2	boothe 71:14			
Bettison 7:6 37:23	BOPC 2:21 3:4,13,15 4:14			
big 30:17 31:5,25 51:4,12	5:18 12:22 23:21 65:8 68:19			
61:25 70:3,9	BOPC@DETROITMI.GOV 3:9			
bill 14:24 23:3,6,7,15 24:3,4 64:5,6 71:17 78:15 84:24	bopc@detroitmi.gov. 2:23			
bills 15:12 22:24	border 51:15,16,19,24 52:6,12			
	borders 51:25			
bit 30:8 35:23 36:12,14 43:5 54:11	borrow 36:10			
black 44:3 51:11 82:5,16	bottom 46:16 63:3			
83:25	boundaries 43:10			
blaring 32:21	Bowman 10:24 68:25 69:21, 22,25			
bless 5:7,8,9	<i>,</i>			

BPD 42:7 brave 73:10 breaks 83:15 Brenda 75:21 77:15 79:23 81:11 84:3,9 Brian 42:19,23 bridge 50:22 67:16 briefed 40:13 briefly 27:4 44:12 52:24 78:5 bring 58:11,12 broken 73:25 brother 51:12 **Brow** 8:18 Brown 5:24,25 8:6 17:22 19:3, 17 20:1,8,9,12,15,20 21:7 66:20 68:17,18,23 69:21,24 71:2 72:10,23,24 73:7,8 74:12 75:20,24 77:4,5,14,15 79:22, 25 80:1,2 81:11,13 82:13,15 84:2,5 85:6,7 Bruce 55:10 Bryant 34:19 35:9,23 36:3,8 80:5 82:8 **buck** 29:18 budgeted 40:1,8,10 **build** 50:21 **bunch** 73:13 Burch 6:9,10 7:10 9:8 18:1,9 19:5 20:14 33:2 35:3,4 36:20 47:20,22,25 48:1,17 49:15,23 62:12,13,15 63:3,10 66:13,14 67:25 68:2

Bureau 39:22 74:24

burglaries 44:20

Burke 48:7

Burton 16:14 25:9,13,14,15, 18,22,24 26:3,8 39:8,10

bus 68:11

N RENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO

313.567.8100

business 5:14 29:7 49:2 50:13 61:1 66:12,22 67:2,25
businesses 29:17 32:14 48:6 50:16
Butler 44:1 73:1 75:22 77:15, 16,25 78:3,8,11
buy 36:25
bylaws 2:16 4:17 12:24 14:8 26:14
bypass 47:23

С

CAC 68:24 cadets 22:8 calendar 3:6 calendars 67:5 call 3:9 5:3 14:25 16:16 25:10 31:19 35:16 68:15 70:3 80:17 called 39:12 52:15 54:25 68:11 76:3,8,9 calling 35:19 72:17 79:4 Calloway 10:14 calls 27:13 28:18 57:12 80:19 calm 35:14 camera 75:4 cameras 74:20 canceled 57:17 candidates 12:16 22:10,15 candy 44:7 canine 35:11 37:10 canines 37:11 can't 63:5 capabilities 54:3,8 capacities 57:21 capacity 54:22 Captain 9:25 10:1,8 34:20

42:25 46:1,6,22 52:2 67:10,21 72:14,19 80:5 82:8 **car** 15:1 45:11,13 46:8 care 36:8 48:4 72:9,18,22 83:6 career 13:16 38:6 64:6 careful 71:19 72:9 carjackings 27:9 Carolyn 10:16 carrier 46:9 carries 8:4,12 13:9 24:1 cars 29:12,16,20,22 30:1 76:6 79:5 Carter 6:15,16 10:13 17:18 18:15 20:18 23:5 24:23 85:2 Carter's 10:23 cartridges 37:1 case 38:8,25 59:9 75:8 cases 53:4 58:2 cast 20:5,8 categories 27:12 category 44:15 45:18,22,23 Catholic 74:18 causing 76:17 77:2 cautious 52:16 **CDC** 48:18 49:8,13 ceased 46:13 celebration 41:24 **census** 43:8 center 56:2 71:4 central 61:1 centuries 82:1 century 84:16 **CEO** 11:18 certification 22:7 24:17 certified 15:9 21:19 22:5 64:9

06/10/2021

Chair 4:6 5:16 6:13 7:15 8:14 9:24 10:10,21 16:11,12 17:4,6 18:2,24 19:7,13 21:5,7,13 23:20 25:6 26:24 38:12 39:21 48:16 49:16 51:14 53:8,13 64:19 67:3 68:3,16,18,21,24 72:10 75:12,20 79:22 81:16, 17,23 82:3 84:2 85:6,7

Chair-elect 18:24

chaired 58:21

Chairman 9:7,12 11:6,21 16:18 19:2,9 25:14 31:11 50:3 70:13 78:12 79:25 80:3

Chairman's 13:12

Chairperson 4:22,23 5:1,13 6:1,8,13,17,22 7:2,8,13,16 8:1,4,7,9,12 9:3,9,16,23 10:18 11:1 12:8 13:6,9,12 14:18 15:10 16:13,16,19,21,24 17:3, 9,12,20,23,25 18:6,10,12,16, 18,20,22,23 19:10,15,22,25 20:4,7,10,13,16,19,21,23 21:1,3,9 23:23 24:1,19 25:2,7, 12,16,22 26:2,12,18,21 31:12 32:3,6,10 33:1 35:3 37:9 38:2 39:3,9,14,19 40:3 42:10,18,21 46:5 47:18,25 50:1 51:2 52:1 53:5,11,22 61:21 62:10,14 64:3 66:11 67:1,2 68:1,17 69:1,3,20 72:23,25 77:4,6,21 78:1,5,9 84:7 85:5,7,12,15

challenged 56:13

challenges 22:14 57:19

Chambers 10:1 42:25 46:1,6, 22

chance 28:2 chances 83:10 Chang 24:4

change 38:4 65:1,12

changed 76:23

changing 49:8

Chaplain 5:4,5,13 47:13



chaplains 50:25 charge 67:14 84:11 Charles 14:12 26:16,19 **chart** 55:14 charter 12:24 21:18 54:23 65:14,20,23 70:4,5,10 71:15 79:21 80:15,16,17,20,25 Chase 63:19 chastise 81:23 cheap 36:25 37:2 **check** 49:18 74:6 checks 34:12 47:3 chemical 70:21 chief 2:25 7:5,6 8:23 9:4,5,6, 11,13,18,20 10:7,12 13:16,19, 25 14:2,10,12,13,15 26:16,18, 21,23 27:5,21 28:3,11,25 29:7,16 30:7,24 31:12,17 32:18 33:16,19 34:1,10,19,22, 23 35:5,25 36:5,7,18,21 37:5, 9,19,23,25 38:3,6,7,9,14 39:16 41:20 45:9 53:6,10,16, 21,24 54:4,7,9,14 55:1,2,10, 23 56:21 57:10 58:11 59:5,25 60:17,21 61:21,23 62:11,20 63:5,14,24 64:3 71:23 77:8,14 80:6 81:18 82:8 84:9,10 Chief's 31:4 53:15 55:4,8 **Chiefs** 80:5 children 83:25 **choice** 52:4 Christopher 10:3 chunk 33:17 church 42:2 74:18 churches 50:25 **circle** 29:14 cities 22:25 23:3 27:6 82:3 citizens 5:19 30:6 31:24 50:24 60:11 61:7 76:21,24

06/10/2021

city 2:11 5:9,19 7:1 12:24 15:3 22:13 24:12,16 36:16,23 37:25 39:2 43:6,9 45:21 46:17 49:21 52:23 54:23 56:8 59:19 65:5,7,19,23 66:15 69:11,13, 17 70:9,10 72:2 75:17 76:15, 17,20,25 81:20 82:12

citywide 38:22

city's 3:4

civic 59:18 61:16 civilian 41:3.12 70:7 civilians 40:7,24 41:1,2,7 class 57:14 60:20 clear 17:21 39:15 clerical 12:4 **clinic** 56:14 clinical 12:16 clinics 56:9 57:3 **clip** 29:25 **clock** 34:3 close 11:4 17:15 19:14 32:17 **closed** 7:18 11:7 19:15 61:2 closing 32:13,18,22 **closures** 46:17 **club** 44:2 52:15 **clubs** 32:19 **CNL** 55:11 co-host 54:7 coast 63:12 code 30:7 cohost 54:6 collaboration 44:11 colleagues 69:5 **collect** 46:14 **Columbus** 33:13 34:18 80:8 combat 47:1

combined 44:23

comforts 76:15

command 58:18 78:25

Commander 10:2 42:19,20,23 43:4,19 44:11 45:1 46:6,23 48:2,16 49:19,25 50:4,14 51:3,14,19 52:1 53:8,12,14,22 54:1 55:4 58:13,25 64:12 67:22 72:14 80:8,9,10 84:11

Commanders 38:1 53:23

commanding 24:7 48:12 52:18 55:3 77:7,13

commands 41:22

commemorating 59:3

comment 2:6 81:3

comments 3:18,19,23 4:2,12, 14 16:1 51:13 68:22 73:15

commission 21:12,20 65:18, 20,24 75:11 80:18 81:15 84:25

commissioner 5:8,21,24,25 6:2,6,9,10,15,19,20,22,247:2, 3,9,10,11,23,24,25 8:6,8 9:8 10:22 11:4,6 12:2 13:4,5,10, 11 14:3,4 16:6,12,14,18,20 17:1,7,18,22,24 18:1,6,8,9,11, 15,17,18,19,20,21,22 19:2,3, 5,7,8,13,17,21,23 20:1,2,5,8, 11,14,15,18,20,21,22,23,24 21:1,2,6,7,10,13 23:22 24:20 25:1,6,8,9,13,14,15,18,22,24 26:3,8,17,20 32:4,5,6,7,9,12, 25 33:1,2,3 35:2,3,4 36:20 37:13,15 38:11,12,13 39:4,7, 10,12,17 40:4 42:6 47:18,20, 21,23,25 48:1,16 49:15,23 50:2,3,10 51:2,3,15 52:24 53:6 62:12,13,14,15 63:3,10, 16,25 64:2,15 66:13,14,19 67:3,25 68:2 74:14,16 75:17 77:16 78:13 84:8 85:9,11

commissioners 2:2,23 3:21 4:25 5:12,15,17 7:4 8:3,11 11:13 12:20 13:8,18 15:19 16:2,22 19:9 21:17 23:11,25

RENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

26:4 32:3 42:11,22 50:1 52:2 53:14 54:23 62:10 65:21 70:6, 16 71:3 73:9 78:24 81:16 84:7 85:14 commitment 22:9 **committed** 75:1 81:15 **commonly** 21:21 59:14 communicating 26:10 67:11 communication 59:16 communications 3:23 **communities** 33:4,5 42:2 83:22,24 community 7:6 8:19 10:24 26:8 28:10 30:18,24 33:8 38:24 42:22 43:20,22,25 44:5, 6 50:16,22,23,24 51:13 54:21 59:22 60:6 61:16 62:2,5 67:4, 17 70:24,25 73:2,3 76:15,19 77:2 community- 61:11 company 48:20 **compared** 44:18 45:3,5,16 compassion 83:5 complaint 2:24,25 3:1 complaints 60:11 complete 4:8 completed 56:15 complications 57:6 compliments 48:17 **component** 30:17 59:9 computer 2:8 4:9 54:11 concern 51:23 52:5,17 53:4 83:2 concerned 24:13 67:17 71:23 76:14,19 77:10 **concerns** 52:6 60:4 77:10 78:1,2 concerts 57:16

06/10/2021 **concludes** 10:9 42:8 66:9 conditions 83:1,5 **conduct** 44:14 conducted 60:8 conference 14:13 28:2 38:14 57:11 conflict 70:20 congratulate 21:9 63:16 80:5 congratulations 72:19 73:18 congregation 42:2 connected 5:10 63:1 connection 66:6 consideration 64:25 65:7 66:2.9 considered 82:25 consisting 65:9 constant 29:14 constituents 26:9 **contact** 2:21,24 3:9 15:13 24:11,20 52:18 64:18 77:12 continue 15:18 16:1 22:19 28:1 29:20,21 30:20 46:7 59:21 60:18 69:18 72:4 75:2 continued 22:14 56:24 58:9 continues 64:24 continuing 45:13 56:6 59:7,15 61:18 **continuous** 41:9,12 76:3 continuously 75:13 contracted 58:5 contributed 60:1 **control** 14:15 35:17 56:10,11 61:4 controls 4:9 conversation 40:5 cooperation 15:25 46:25

coordination 55:6 Coordinator 8:19 **core** 11:12 corporal 41:15 corporals 55:5 **Corporation** 8:22 18:2 corps 55:3,18 56:15,22 57:20 58:14,15,18,21 59:1,13 60:19 62:1.4 correct 53:3 Correction 7:9 corrections 8:7 47:3 correctly 79:8 correspondence 64:21 66:10 correspondences 65:25 cost 21:12 22:3 costing 70:9 costs 14:23 21:15 23:1,3,8 council 10:24 24:10,11 36:17 43:9.25 Counsel 8:22 18:2 **count** 21:4 counteract 71:24 counterparts 79:18 country 6:7 81:8 county 36:10,11 37:14,17,19 59:19 couple 7:17 43:2 77:20 courage 72:7 court 8:16 81:2 84:21 courts 52:25 coverage 14:17 **COVID** 32:16 55:17,19 56:7 57:6 58:5 66:19 COVID-19 56:22 58:3 cracks 73:21



Craig 9:5 34:24 Crawford 37:15 **created** 56:17 credit 71:8,9 **crime** 27:4,14,16 44:12,17,22 46:23 59:21 71:22,25 crimes 44:24 45:21 73:22 criminal 27:6 44:14 criminality 69:10 criminals 71:1 76:22,25 criteria 21:25 critical 24:3 Cromwell 8:24 **crowd** 14:14 27:5 28:4,14 56:10 crucial 38:5 42:15 64:14 current 11:24 39:23 customer 48:25 customers 48:13,24 49:10,12 **cut** 66:19 cutoff 29:9

D

DABO 71:4 dangerous 31:20 Daniel 10:6,14 Darryl 5:25 20:15 data 43:8 64:25 date 60:21 Davis 6:19,20 16:6,12,14 18:11,17 19:21,23 20:20 25:6, 8 26:17,20 32:6,8,9 33:1,3 39:4,7,12,17 40:4 47:19,23 day 6:3 7:7 38:8 45:12 64:9 71:5 81:7

day-to-day 12:19 55:6

06/10/2021 days 12:11 27:11,22 60:10,11 75:1 **DC** 35:4,9,23 36:3 37:5 38:12 39:3,15 57:19 84:8 **de** 70:13 de-escalation 59:16 deaf 73:23 deal 73:17 dealing 26:5 73:12 74:1 **Dean** 58:21 Dearborn 51:20 58:24 dearly 59:2 **decade** 58:19 decades 82:1 deception 75:14 decibel 74:7 **decided** 76:20 decisions 11:15 decorum 16:2 26:15 decrease 60:3 78:22 79:3 decreases 27:12 deemed 4:6 **deep** 34:25 deflate 79:8 dehumanizing 82:17 deliberately 30:1 delivery 12:21 demand 75:2 demobilization 79:7 denied 68:12 **Denise** 13:25 Dennard 68:8 department 8:14 12:12 13:23, 24 15:4,8,9 21:17 22:4,8,13,

54:24 55:18 56:16,18 57:13 58:3,6,16,23 59:15 60:2 65:5 66:6 68:10 69:16 70:7 71:5,8 72:4 74:19 77:18 78:4,25 79:20

departmental 59:12

departments 52:12 58:24 79:16 84:13

depleted 77:2

deployed 45:10

deploying 38:17,22

deployment 79:1

Deputy 9:4,6,11,18,20 14:12, 15 26:16,18,21,23 27:21 28:11,25 29:16 30:7,24 31:12, 17 32:18 33:16 34:10 35:25 36:6,18,21 37:14 45:8 74:21 77:8,14 82:8 84:10

Derek 9:25

description 12:3,13

descriptions 11:25

deserve 69:12 73:13

deserves 79:17

designated 13:23 54:25

desire 54:21

destroy 69:11

detail 28:6,7,16,20,21

detailed 56:17 60:5

details 33:21,25 34:3

detective 46:12,17 47:8 67:9, 14

deterrence 29:23

detriment 33:8

Detroit 2:2,11 5:19 6:7 12:19 13:20 21:16 22:4,11,17,18,19, 25 23:11,19,20 24:13,16,21 31:3 32:13,14 40:24 41:1,3,4 43:7 44:2 49:21 51:7,8 52:13 54:16,24 55:2 59:6 60:2 65:14,15,18 69:17 70:7 72:5,

9



20 23:19 24:7 27:18 35:15,20

36:15 39:23 43:18 47:3 52:3,9

21 74:18 76:1 78:23 79:10,17 81:4 82:5 83:14 84:10 **Detroiters** 71:13,17 Detroitmi.gov 3:14 detroitmi.gov/bopc 3:5 detroitmi.gov/bopc. 3:3 develop 74:25 device 4:11 79:8 dial 2:22 4:10 dilapidated 77:3 diligence 5:2 diligently 45:7 direct 52:22 55:12 78:25 direction 27:15,25 32:1 38:3 56:11 66:23 directions 31:22 directive 74:22 directives 3:7 directly 39:10,18 **Director** 8:21 10:2 11:14,18 15:15 39:19,21 40:3,6,7 41:16 42:10,17 disability 57:3 disabled 41:11 discipline 75:10 disciplines 75:8 **discuss** 68:15 discussed 7:21 discussion 8:2,10 13:7 23:24 65:16,22 66:5 85:1,13 disinvested 83:22 dismissal 2:18 4:7 displaying 54:2 disqualified 40:15 Distortion 61:10 62:6 distributed 3:11

06/10/2021 **district** 5:23,25 6:1,4,8,11,13, 14,16,18,20 13:25 14:1,2 17:21,23,25 18:13,14,16 19:20 20:7,10,13,16,17,19 25:24 50:13 51:4 74:1 districts 6:25 43:10 division 62:2 document 61:9 documented 58:2 documents 84:22 **Dodge** 58:13,17,25 dollars 22:22 23:17 **Don** 8:16 donuts 72:17 door 33:19 49:11 74:5 dose 58:7 doubt 25:2 downtime 33:7 downtown 28:19,22 29:3,7,13 30:19 32:13 33:25 38:18,20, 23 39:1 60:22,24 67:6 downward 45:19 **DPD** 9:17 10:9 22:7 34:23 36:4 38:20 42:13 64:16.22 66:6 73:10 75:2 **DPOA** 24:8 **DPR** 55:24 56:23 57:5 draft 3:7,10,13 drag 28:23 29:18,25 44:8 61:2 78:22 79:3,6,9 drifters 69:9 73:18 74:2 79:7, 10 drifting 28:7,15,23 29:18,25 drop 41:18 dropped 27:22,23 **Drug** 74:23 drugs 35:6,7

due 5:2 75:13

Duggan 33:17 37:21 38:18

duties 12:23 57:23 61:14,15 64:10

duty 23:16 41:9 54:25 56:25 65:2

Ε

earlier 10:12 58:17 early 32:17 easily 33:14 35:7

east 28:23 34:4 46:11 63:12 68:11

Easter 50:14,17

Eastern 14:1

eating 83:7

education 56:6 59:7 61:18 82:23

Edward 10:8 43:2

effect 25:5

effective 21:18 23:13,16 38:20 79:7,13

effectiveness 12:21

efficiently 57:22

effort 62:2

egg 50:14,18

Elaine 36:8 72:19 80:5 82:8

elderly 56:12

elected 10:19 81:19,20

election 14:6 16:10,25 17:4 71:21

elections 75:10

Elementary 50:18 email 2:9,10,12,22 3:8,10,20

emotional 59:16

empathy 83:4

NSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100 employees 12:23 30:9 49:1 employing 22:1 employment 11:22 22:15 23:10 empowered 69:10 empowering 38:1 empowers 69:15 encode 28:9 encompass 43:6 encourage 30:14 52:7 81:5 end 22:24 46:9 endure 31:25 enforce 70:25 79:12 enforcement 21:19,20,22 22:1,12 23:8 28:6,9 29:2 30:8 37:7 50:21 52:7 54:21 65:12 74:20,23 81:8 enforcing 57:17 engage 26:4 46:25 82:18 engaged 28:5 43:22 73:3 82:17 engagement 28:10 60:13 83:18 enhance 12:20 enhanced 23:19 enjoying 29:15 enrich 47:5 ensure 15:17 21:18 23:16 30:3 54:6 enter 49:12 83:6 entering 58:9 entertain 12:9 entire 60:13 entitled 65:11,17 equally 35:1 equipment 70:21

06/10/2021 equipped 74:6 Eric 72:12 74:12,17 Erica 8:22 errands 57:24 essential 23:12 establish 52:11 established 54:22 estimates 22:2 euphoric 36:24 evaluate 12:7 evaluations 11:17 evening 78:19 84:7 event 13:20 60:13 62:18 events 57:17 61:12 evidence 46:14,23 Evidently 35:19 excellent 63:17 80:7,10 exceptional 60:3 excessive 76:5 excited 27:24 61:12 excitedly 58:8 excuse 10:15 19:22 22:5 25:16 26:12 39:14 40:3 executive 7:5 11:10,14,17 12:5,15 55:9 56:20 58:22 executives 10:10 37:10 66:7 expand 60:23 61:14 expanding 61:11 expansion 62:7 expect 27:12,14 experience 12:18 85:1 experienced 22:14 exploring 65:19,21 Explosives 74:24 expressing 50:11

extensive 66:2 extent 24:10 31:18 external 66:7 extra 28:12,13 34:8 45:11 57:24 64:11 extremely 61:12

F

fabulous 67:15 face 48:2 59:1 Facebook 3:17 14:19 faced 30:2 facial 64:22 82:11 facilitating 65:12 facilities 13:15 fact 33:19 52:13 71:6,15 82:1, 2,20 84:13,18 facto 70:13 failed 40:19,21 Failure 2:17 fair 13:14 21:19 fall 43:10 57:15,16 falling 59:14 false 75:15 families 67:8,11 83:21 family 27:18 34:7 67:8,19 69:6 82:21 famous 6:10 68:5,7 fancy 31:7 fantastic 13:17,21 82:10 Farr 75:22 78:20 fatal 34:5 father 5:5,11 36:2 favor 8:2,10 13:7 23:24 85:13 favorite 53:23

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

fax 3:2 FBI 34:11 74:22 fear 70:17 federal 75:3 feel 33:4 58:20 feeling 83:16 fees 23:1 feet 30:10 fellow 7:4 female 27:2 Ferndale 51:5,22 81:24 festival 57:17 field 26:10 39:24 79:13 file 2:25 79:19 filled 40:8,9 filling 39:15 finally 42:6 59:6 financial 80:17 find 3:5 36:7 fine 2:14 31:17 35:1 fire 13:20,23 30:10 Firearms 74:24 fireworks 74:3 first-line 65:11 **Fitzgerald** 9:4,6,11,20 14:13 26:16,19,23 27:21 28:11,25 29:16 30:7,24 31:17 32:18 33:16 34:10 35:4,13,18,25 36:2,18,21 37:9 38:12 39:15 57:19 84:8 five-point 27:5 38:15 floor 19:19 25:17,23 26:7,13, 15,22 32:4 39:20 **FMLA** 41:9,10,12 focus 46:7 60:24 62:5 70:5 focused 61:12

06/10/2021 focuses 61:25 folk 83:3 folks 27:13 28:20 29:3,12,15 30:14 32:22 33:20,21 34:6,25 37:6 57:9 58:9 62:8 79:20 83:11 follow 49:3 63:7 77:9 follow-up 77:23 footage 75:4 force 59:16 60:12,16 forfeit 29:22 form 4:8 77:22 formula 83:23 fortunate 34:22 forum 2:15,17 3:19 forums 4:19 forward 7:22 15:4 24:5 38:11 45:13 56:5 66:4 67:23 73:5 84:25 fostered 58:22 foundation 21:24 73:21 frame 15:24 fraternity 42:4 Freda 44:1 free 22:17 68:13 frequently 63:17 Friday 34:1 friendly 70:24 front 38:5 frontline 61:14 froze 54:11 frustrations 83:1 full 41:20 fun 31:22,23,24 functional 57:18 59:8 functions 11:13

fund 23:8 funding 23:18 38:25 funds 23:14 75:17 future 15:21 24:4

G

gain 11:25 gap 67:16 gas 29:19 35:7 37:4,7 gather 46:15 62:22 gave 35:23 general 55:19 56:11 74:22 gentlemen 68:15 George 79:23,24,25 80:3 Gerald 10:8 Giana 10:13 Gilbert 10:9 give 5:6 7:4 29:8 47:6 48:7 53:9 54:4,9,16,19 63:21 64:11 68:15 71:9,10 72:3,7 giveaways 44:7 giving 27:18 34:7 43:4 46:8 71:7 75:15 alad 37:271:4 **Glass** 10:6 God 5:8,9 80:9 good 2:1 4:23,25 5:16,18,20, 24 6:2,9,15,24 7:3,11 18:9 26:23,24 27:3 29:8 30:11 39:21 42:20,21 48:3 50:8 53:13,24 55:22 63:20 68:13, 18 71:3,22,23 73:23 76:21,24 77:16 78:20 84:6,7 **Goss** 84:9 Govdelivery 3:12 grace 5:6,9 graciously 28:12

12



313.567.8100

graduate 40:23 graduated 84:18 graduates 22:19 23:4 40:22 graduation 22:16 Graham 26:25 granted 38:18 Graveline 10:3 great 7:1 28:19 42:11 50:11, 15,20,22 61:23 67:1 69:11,25 78:19 84:6 greatly 23:15 31:10 32:15 Greektown 28:22 32:13 60:23 61:1 69:11 Greenfield 46:10,11 Greenlight 60:9 greenlit 57:15 Greer-travis 43:1 greeter 68:6 grocery 42:3 48:12,22 **Gross** 82:2 ground 61:19 **group** 70:5 groups 31:2,3 grow 55:12 growing 84:19 guess 25:20 51:23 70:2 guests 77:16 guidelines 48:18 49:8,13 gun 9:12 67:9,12 gunman 14:11 guns 34:9,13 45:14,16 73:19 74:10 guys 26:1 54:10 Gwendolyn 10:3 53:19

н half 70:14 Hall 13:14,15 hand 3:25 4:10 9:17 11:9 16:5, 7 32:9 42:1 47:19,20 55:11 handguns 45:15 handle 48:15 62:21 Handyside 8:17 happen 32:2 80:20 81:17 happened 46:16 58:1 happening 54:12 happy 44:1 45:18 49:22 hard 43:18 66:3 hard-working 50:8 hardest 5:18 hardworking 27:17 harmed 82:25 Harper 52:15 Hart 38:6 Hartwell 43:23 hasten 79:12 hate 18:3 Haven 58:25 head 29:13 headed 55:10 heads 29:9 health 35:6 hear 14:12 15:14,15 26:1 35:6 36:1 39:9,11,17 57:19 69:2,23 73:24 74:5,13,15 80:1 81:12 82:14 84:4 heard 14:10 37:25 39:14 64:12 70:1 73:24 75:23 heart 56:25 74:18 83:15 held 14:13 22:4 65:10

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

helicopter 79:2 helicopters 30:5 36:12 helping 36:11 60:21 helps 44:5 Henry 58:13 Hernandez 6:23,24,25 7:24 13:5 18:18,19 20:21,22 Hewitt 10:8 high 22:20 36:24 57:6,9 60:14 highlight 16:8 60:17 highway 36:13 Hill 55:6 79:23 81:11,12,14 hired 40:14 hires 40:23 41:3,4 hiring 84:12 historic 13:21 history 75:11 83:18 hold 11:23 14:6 30:9,10 holding 27:2 55:25 66:5 Holley 7:9,11,23 16:22 17:7 18:4,6,8,22 21:1,2 42:7 50:2,3 78:13 Holt 5:16,21,23 6:5 13:3 14:4 16:23 17:8,11,17 20:4,5 21:12,13 24:2 47:21 85:10 homage 7:4 home 6:4 44:2 47:3 83:21 Home's 44:1 homepage 3:15 homes 83:3 homicide 45:2 67:9 homicides 27:6,21 44:13 45:3 honest 80:16 honor 26:14 Honorable 5:17 13:25 26:24 42:21 53:13,25 64:19 68:19

80:4 84:25 honorees 13:22 **Hood** 13:25 hope 10:2 15:18 24:5,19 28:1 53:9,12,14 54:1 55:5 62:6 64:5,13 66:20 67:22 71:24 72:4 75:7 77:7 80:8,9 84:23 Hopkins 5:4,5 horn 76:12 Horton 44:3 hospitality 32:15 host 4:5 hostile 31:20 hosting 65:16 hot 6:2 hotspot 46:7 hour 3:21 55:24 hours 27:19 28:14.15.22 32:17 34:8 38:19 56:25 57:2 60:2 80:19 house 15:1 23:6,15 27:2 housing 82:22 **HR** 15:15 39:16,19 43:18 84:11 human 12:12 13:1 23:18 39:22 42:9 65:8 83:25 humane 83:10 hunt 50:14,18 hurdle 84:23 hurt 31:15 32:15 hydrated 83:8 Т

icon 3:25 identify 2:5 illegal 34:14 45:14 73:19 82:25

06/10/2021 images 4:5 imagine 74:8 immediately 22:15 impact 15:5 59:10 impactful 55:19 impacts 15:3 65:22 Imperial 48:5,23 50:11 important 4:2 43:21 56:19 70:16 75:6 importantly 58:22 59:10,17 60:9 **impressed** 38:3,10 impression 50:20 in-house 56:1 inaccurate 52:20 inadequate 82:23 inappropriate 4:6 52:4 inaudible 17:2 18:7 19:4 59:24 60:7 65:4 68:22 inception 82:2 incidents 27:10 60:12,16 include 10:11 12:5,14 75:9 included 41:6,17 84:12 includes 39:25 including 22:22 44:6 45:10 79:14 incoming 64:21 66:9 incomplete 11:8 Incorporate 12:17 increase 40:12 44:17 45:4 60:19 **increased** 28:5,19,25 42:5 increasing 61:13 incredible 62:7 incredibly 34:10 individual 49:6

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

individuals 69:9 indoor 48:19 49:14 industry 32:15 information 2:21 3:4,15,16 14:7,8,9 19:21,23 25:8 26:17 40:25 46:15 59:22,23 62:22, 23 66:4 77:12,21 informed 15:24 initially 31:14 initiative 60:22 initiatives 12:22 23:18 24:12 41:19 60:18 injuries 31:18 innovation 5:4 8:15 inside 32:19.24 instance 15:10 70:13 institution 58:19 instructions 3:18 instructors 66:7 integral 54:24 intelligence 59:17 intended 10:11 intensity 78:22 intent 23:6 interact 64:5 interaction 64:13 interest 40:14 60:1 70:20 interested 85:2 Interim 8:23 84:9 intermediate 41:10,13 internet 11:3 82:22 interrupt 18:3 interrupting 4:21 introduce 15:1 53:18 introduced 22:24 23:6

introducing 53:16	
introduction 5:14 53:25 54:19	
introductions 9:17 53:9	j
investigation 46:20	
investigations 2:24	j
investigator 2:25 8:20,23,24, 25 9:1,2 10:13,14,15	•
investment 22:21	
invite 67:19	
invited 4:5 63:11	•
inviting 67:8	•
involved 35:18 63:8	•
involvement 73:6	•
involving 60:12	j
ipad 11:2	•
irate 48:13	
issue 11:4,5 15:3,14 24:13,24 25:13 29:7 37:10,11,18,21 42:13 49:5 53:3 77:11 80:22 82:4,6 84:15	j
issued 74:22	-
issues 11:5,12 37:22 38:15 61:9,10 77:11,23 81:7,14	ł
item 8:5 65:1	ŀ
items 7:18 12:25	•
J	ł
Jackson 10:8 43:2 50:4,7	
jail 37:17	
James 9:10	
January 57:1	
Jeffrey 55:5	
Jerry 75:21	
Jim 16:22	
job 11:7,20,24 12:1,3,7,13 34:19 46:19 47:16 64:12 68:4,	ł

Johnson 55:5 72:11 73:8,9,24 join 2:8 3:8 4:3 26:3 58:10 64:16 joining 4:3 7:7 42:14 43:1

Jones 7:2,3,25 8:8 13:4 18:20, 21 19:7,8,13 20:2,6,16,18,22, 23,24,25 21:2,6,10 23:22 25:1 37:13 38:11,12,13 67:3 74:14, 16 85:11

Jonya 8:20

Joy 10:2 53:9,12,14

Judge 13:25 14:2

July 18:24 40:11

jump 9:14

June 8:5 36:4 41:22,23,25 64:23 66:1 67:7,19 68:20

Juneteenth 41:23 justice 67:6,7,18 74:18 75:1,6, 7

Κ

Kalamazoo 35:17 Katrina 8:21 40:7 41:16 42:17 key 12:25 15:1 73:6 keynote 13:24 kids 50:20 killings 72:1 kind 28:6 29:23 30:9 31:4 72:7 kinds 46:22 knew 42:14 knock 78:17 knowledge 13:14 52:22 73:1 Koons 66:23 kudos 72:3 Kyra 10:2 53:8,12,14 L

lack 29:19 39:2 40:14 82:22 Ladies 32:10 Lansing 64:5 78:16 larcenies 44:20 large 5:22 33:17 34:11 43:22 large-scale 56:8 larger 11:25 Lashanna 34:20 Lashinda 13:16 lastly 4:13 31:5 late 28:22 latest 53:18 launch 61:7 launching 59:6 law 21:20,22 22:1,12 23:8 36:15 50:21 54:21 59:9,10 65:5,7,12 74:19 81:7 82:4 law- 21:18 lawlessness 69:9 Lawrence 8:23 laws 4:18 70:25 lawsuits 76:16 layers 27:16 **lead** 5:6 leadership 24:6 38:4,10 51:22 56:2 64:13 leading 46:17 leads 73:22 **league** 65:16 leave 22:19 41:8,10,13 49:1,6 57:6 65:2 72:15 leaves 12:19 83:2 leaving 40:9 84:13,17



led 44:1,3 **left** 15:7,10 legal 34:14 59:8 83:18 legislative 14:22 21:11,14 23:1 legislators 22:24 legislature 23:12 84:21 Lena 10:1 lend 84:25 Leonard 10:9 let all 71:21 letting 66:24 Levalley 36:14 level 12:5,15 60:14 levels 29:6,10 30:4 32:21 74:7 **Lewis** 10:7 53:6,10,17,21,24 54:4,7,9,14 55:2,11,23 56:21 57:10 58:11 59:5,25 60:17 61:21,23 62:11,20 63:5,14,24 64:3 liaison 41:24 53:15 55:4,9 licensing 21:22,25 licensure 22:7 Liddell 10:1 lie 70:3,9 Lieutenant 10:4,6 43:1 48:7 49:20 53:19 55:8,25 68:24,25 69:2,4,12 80:11 81:10 lieutenants 49:21 life 61:9,10 light 60:4 lights 30:2 limit 52:8 limited 23:16 37:12 65:10 Linda 6:3 55:10 81:23 84:8 lines 81:23

06/10/2021 link 3:16 linking 46:23 links 3:7 Lisa 6:15 74:22 Lisonya 8:25 list 3:8 9:25 84:19 listen 15:21 37:12 76:18 listened 37:13 78:16 listening 7:6 lists 64:20 lit 30:13 live 6:11 14:19,20 23:4 35:22 78:21 83:8 Livernois 76:2 lives 81:6 living 82:5 83:1 locations 60:9 79:14 Lockhart 48:7 49:20 logged 56:25 logging 2:14 long 22:4 27:19 45:16 59:1 62:3 82:18 84:14,24 long-awaited 59:6 longer 24:14 longest-serving 58:14,15,16 looked 43:14 48:9 Lord 81:1 lose 33:13 48:9 losing 33:18 34:17 80:6 loss 22:21,22 49:23 58:20 lost 11:2 63:6 67:12 lot 27:18 28:9 30:7,9,12,16 31:8 33:4,21 34:6 47:15 52:22 55:21 62:3 70:2 71:7,25 72:7 73:25 78:18 82:17 lots 29:5,17 30:12

loud 29:10 32:21 39:15 74:3 love 6:11,21 50:11 63:25 72:8, 21 loved 67:18 low-profile 38:7 LSA 10:5 24:8 68:24

М

Mac 75:22 78:20 Mack 52:5 Mackenzie 50:18 made 25:25 33:20 38:21 59:18 65:19 Madrigal 9:1 Mae 5:21 main 29:7 59:8 64:8 maintain 61:4 63:8 64:14 major 18:11 27:6 37:6 38:15 60:18 majority 26:4 make 2:5 3:23 7:17 11:15,16 17:21 27:19 29:23 30:10,21 32:1,16 49:9 52:2,14 55:21 62:23,25 63:1,6 76:1 77:9,12 81:5 83:7 85:8 makes 83:3 making 15:4 29:12 34:14 52:20 56:5 74:21 **man** 46:11 manage 57:12 management 12:18 27:5 28:4, 15 48:14 55:6

managers 48:12

manages 11:15

mandate 48:22

mandated 21:18

mandates 21:23

16

ANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100 mandating 48:21 manner 5:2 manpower 37:17,21 57:19 **Maples** 10:5 **Marie** 10:22 mark 10:4,15 67:5 68:24 71:4 market 48:23 markets 63:12 Markita 10:14 Marshall 74:23 Martin 19:8 20:2,6 mask 48:13,15,19,24,25 49:12,14 masked 2:7 masks 48:11 mat 57:18 materially 75:14 Matt 68:10 matter 12:10 24:9 33:19 78:18 82:1 mayor 24:11 28:11 33:16 37:21,23 38:18 45:10 66:23 Mcclure 10:4 53:19 55:8 Mcfarland 43:23 **Mcgraw** 76:2 Mcnichols 46:10 51:16,17,18 **MCOLE** 65:10 MCOLES 22:7 40:16 meaningful 31:13 means 31:8 meant 17:1 meantime 71:12 media 31:14 37:13,14 42:5 73:15 medical 33:22 41:10,13 65:3

06/10/2021

meet 30:20 34:1 56:16 77:22 meeting 2:2,3,6,15,18 3:6,19,

24 4:3,4,7,19,21 5:3,9,11 8:16 15:18,20 16:2,15 29:6 36:19 40:5 50:9 70:17 73:4 77:17 85:18

meetings 57:11 58:22 68:20 70:14,19 77:20

melee 31:15

member 14:7 58:14 61:11 63:7 67:9

members 8:17 10:11 13:1 30:25 42:22 50:9 53:18 56:4, 20,23 57:5 58:7,16 59:18,20, 22 60:15 61:3,13 62:3,6,22 67:12

membership 55:12

memorandum 65:13

Memorium 58:12

men 5:20 27:17 69:12 73:10

mental 35:6

mention 10:12 36:10 38:21 45:1 50:14 61:18

mentioned 14:3,5 36:18 45:9

mentorship 61:15

message 2:4

met 30:19 37:22

metropolitan 52:13

Michael 10:1 42:25

Michelle 79:23

Michigan 14:1,22 21:14,20 22:23 23:12 47:3 76:2 78:17 79:15,16 81:1

Middle 50:19

mile 51:25

miles 43:6

military 7:14 41:10 70:21

million 34:11,13

millions 22:21 mind 49:9 52:14 mindful 69:14 minimally 12:14 Minister 72:12 74:12,13,15,17 minor 31:18 minute 9:8 15:22 61:21 80:23 minutes 3:6 4:13 8:5 15:17,23 26:3 misconduct 75:2 misinformation 70:2 misleading 12:3 misrepresenting 75:15 mission 9:16 21:11 misunderstand 36:9 mobile 4:10 mobility 56:12 modest 78:21 modified 74:4 moment 5:6 54:10 55:21 61:17 **Monaco** 74:22 money 28:12 32:16 33:17 70:8.9 71:16 81:5 monies 71:16 monitoring 8:15 month 34:13 39:23 40:17,23 41:6,18,22 42:8 73:5 monthly 41:15 42:7 57:11 months 34:17 60:7 **Moore** 10:22

morning 14:14 28:3 38:14 74:4

mother 80:14,15

motion 8:4,12 12:9,10 13:9 19:13 24:1 85:8

 JAISSANCE
 hansonreporting.com

 OURT REPORTERS & VIDEO
 313.567.8100

motor 44:21 motorbikes 76:4 Mounsey 42:19,20,23 43:4,19 44:11 45:1 48:2,12,16 49:19, 25 50:14 51:14 80:10 **move** 7:16,22 11:4 12:10 13:12 14:10 16:10,20 21:10 23:20 25:4 26:7,15,18 30:13 32:19,23 38:11 39:5,16,19 42:18 52:23 53:6 59:24 61:6 62:9 64:18 78:6 moved 7:23 8:1,6,9 13:6 23:23 57:11 85:9,12 **movie** 44:9 moving 30:15 38:2 **MPO** 72:14 **MSP** 36:10,12,13 **MTOC** 47:4 mufflers 74:5 **muggy** 6:3 municipal 21:22 79:16 municipalities 23:13 murals 66:24 music 29:5,11,15 32:19,20,23 74:3 mute 25:19 40:4 muted 4:4

Ν

NACOLES 21:21,23 names 72:15 75:18 nation 22:13 national 44:7 80:22 nationally 80:24 navigate 83:16 needed 23:12 neglected 83:22

06/10/2021 negligent 76:16 neighborhood 41:24 43:3,10 44:4 53:15 55:4,8 60:6 neighborhoods 33:8 57:3 79:4 news 3:13 26:25 27:3 45:21 **Newson** 10:2 Nichols 10:16 night 44:7,9 nights 30:16 nitric 36:24 **no-** 78:16 no-knock 77:18 78:14 noise 28:5 29:2.10 73:25 nominate 17:7 19:2,7 nominated 19:17 nomination 17:10 18:25 20:1. 3 36:6 nominations 17:5,13,14,15 19:1,11,12,14 nominees 17:19 non- 12:15 83:24 non-criminal 2:25 non-detroit 41:2 non-fatal 27:8,23 46:18 none@none.com 2:13 nonfatal 34:5 normal 28:21 **north** 46:9 Northern 51:16 note 2:2 3:15 7:17 64:23 65:15 **noticeable** 43:19 79:3 noticed 29:3 **NPO** 10:5 NPOS 61:8

nuisance 29:22

number 3:2 34:11 35:8,22 40:14 48:8 49:24 57:5 58:4 73:15,24

numbers 2:7 34:6 41:12 45:2 59:25 62:1

numerous 27:16 76:5

nutshell 31:4

0

Oak 81:24 objecting 70:12 observed 22:17 obtain 46:21 occurring 47:2 **OCI** 8:13 offending 79:9 offenses 44:18 offered 46:25 office 2:24 10:12.23 16:10 18:24 21:6,8 24:18 71:24 officer 5:10 10:5,6 24:7 31:9 48:3 49:17 51:11 52:18 64:10 65:3 77:8,13 officers 6:21 14:9 15:6,9 21:23,25 28:13 31:15,19,21 41:15 42:14 43:3,12 44:4 47:6,14,15 50:21 54:23 55:3 57:21,23 59:11,12,23 60:1,7, 12 62:17,19 74:19 76:10,11 79:5,11 80:11,12,13 81:3,4,9 official 18:23 21:4 59:3 officially 19:24,25 36:4 officials 10:19,20 oftentimes 57:22 **Ohio** 72:20 online 56:16 57:11 open 16:25 19:19



operating 28:8 56:15 operational 56:3 operations 12:19 33:24 45:8 46:25 47:4,7 opportunities 47:7 61:13 62:8 67:16 **opportunity** 14:21 54:15 78:24 79:19 oppose 8:12 85:15 opposed 8:4 13:9 24:1 opposite 27:15 44:19 opposition 25:3 options 4:11 oral 3:23 order 5:3,14 16:6,8 19:16 45:8 orders 46:24 47:12 ordinance 36:16 ordinances 4:18 73:25 organization 55:14,20 75:18 organization's 59:17 organizations 42:5 43:22 44:3 75:1 ouiess 31:19 out-of-service 45:11 outbid 33:14 outline 38:16 outlined 14:16 outlining 38:14 outreach 61:16 outstanding 14:1 46:19 47:16 69:16 73:3 overdue 84:24 overlook 16:9 overseen 55:3 oversight 12:21 21:16 70:7 overtime 27:19 28:13,20

06/10/2021 33:10,17,23,25 34:2 37:16 38:19 45:9 60:25 62:9 overview 43:5 45:25 55:13 **owner** 49:9 owners 29:7,21 30:9 **oxide** 36:24 Ρ packet 41:6,17 55:13,15 65:6 pal 61:15 pandemic 55:20 56:24 57:1 60:4 61:20 panel 65:16,22 66:5 panelists 2:10 Park 78:21 **parked** 30:13 parking 28:9 29:5,17 30:7,9 37:7 Parnell 72:11,12,13 part 22:9 28:10 30:17 44:17, 22,23 51:4 52:21 56:5 70:23 73:6 79:9 84:15 participants 3:24 4:3 participated 83:12 participation 61:11 67:22 parties 30:15 partner 30:23 61:8 partnering 50:24 partners 7:6 30:11,19,21 partnership 61:7 62:24 partnerships 30:18 party 31:7 passage 23:15 passed 36:15 50:20 58:17 **passion** 60:14 past 40:18,21 45:19,24 60:7

70:1 77:17 pastors 35:15,16 patience 54:13 Patillo 8:21 39:21 40:7 41:16 42:17 patrol 47:9 57:2 61:7 patrols 36:13 pattern 22:17,25 pause 72:25 pay 65:271:1775:8 paying 30:13 34:9 76:21 pays 22:8 peace 30:25 peacefully 27:1 pedal 29:19 pending 42:8 64:5 Pennell 43:24 people 3:11,13 11:10 24:15 33:4,10 35:8,13,14,18 48:9 49:13 52:25 56:12 57:9 62:18 63:21 68:9,13 69:10,16 70:11 71:7 73:13,21,25 74:9 81:20 82:1,6,18,19,24 83:5,13 perception 79:11 **perfect** 69:17 **perform** 64:11 performance 12:23 perilous 5:7 period 15:2,7 23:10 permanently 40:15 person 30:11 34:18 55:7 73:5 81:19 personal 47:11 personally 82:9 personnel 8:22 9:18 11:16 22:22 33:12 41:14 56:2 61:6 84:11

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100

pertinent 15:22 Pestello 10:6 Petty 79:24 82:13,14,16 phenomenal 50:13,19 phone 2:6 25:9 40:4 phones 4:20 physical 40:17,20 picking 11:3 piggyback 50:10 **pilot** 56:18 **Pingree** 78:21 place 14:20 23:21 27:17 35:10 62:16 83:11 places 48:23 58:25 plan 28:3,4 31:5,25 35:6 38:15 planned 57:14 75:4 plaque 59:2 platforms 2:19 play 54:23 83:8 played 55:19 playing 29:5,15 74:3 pleased 56:4,23 67:4 78:21 pleasure 53:15 Plymouth 46:11 **PM** 3:22 4:11 65:17 68:20,21 pockets 76:22 point 7:21 13:13 18:9,11 19:21,23 25:8 26:17 27:10 28:3,4,5,7,9 33:20 43:14 48:24 82:2 83:4,16 points 57:7 police 3:21 5:17,24 6:20 7:4 8:22 10:6,21 11:13 12:20 13:20,24 14:22 15:16 16:21 19:9 21:12,15,16,17,24 22:3, 4,11,19 23:4,9,11,14,19 24:7 31:18,23 33:5 35:15,20 39:25

40:2 41:1,3,4,7 42:22 43:3 44:4 45:11 51:5,11 52:3 53:13,17,21 54:16,20,22,24 55:1,2,5,10,18 56:16 57:13 58:3,16,21 59:6,12,15 60:2, 12,19 62:1,18,20 65:3,18,21 69:16 70:6,7,15,21,22,24 71:5,7,9 72:3 73:2 74:5 75:2 76:5,10 77:18 78:4,24 79:15, 20 80:11 81:24 83:20 84:10, 12 policies 2:4,16,18,20 56:3 59:12 policing 21:19 22:6 70:23 policy 3:7 23:13 74:25 **pool** 11:18,25 **pooper** 81:18 popular 70:12 population 43:7 portions 70:6 position 11:20 12:4,6,11,15, 16 16:21 18:25 19:8 34:21 40:10 68:6 positions 39:24,25 40:1,8,9 43:16 72:20 positive 45:21 possess 54:20 possibly 34:16 posted 4:18 postponed 57:15 Potts 34:20 72:20 80:5 82:8 poverty 82:21 powerless 79:11 **powers** 54:25 practice 6:11 practices 83:10 practicing 75:14 pray 5:6,7,8,9,11 80:12,13 81:4.9

06/10/2021

prayer 80:13

Precinct 15:15 33:18 34:16 37:24 41:21,23,25 42:1,18,24 43:5,11,13,16,20,21,25 44:2, 12,24 45:3,12 46:1,3 47:2,6, 15,24 48:4 49:22 50:12,17 51:15,16,17,19,24 53:3 65:4 72:13 73:2,6 77:8,13 80:11

Precincts 28:17 33:11,18,20 34:2,4 42:16 43:9 47:11 51:20,21 64:8 76:8

premature 16:24

prepared 11:5

preparing 61:6

presence 28:5,19 29:1 42:6 60:23

present 7:12 10:10,22,25 26:10 42:23 60:10 83:18

presentation 53:10,20 54:1,18 55:15 77:18,19 78:4,14,18 80:18

presentations 3:6

presenting 39:22

preserve 23:17

president 10:5 37:14 68:24 73:1

press 3:25 14:13,16 28:2 38:13

pretty 28:8 31:7 45:24 48:21 49:9 51:1,22 60:14

prevalent 35:7

prevent 4:21

previous 14:23 36:19 67:22

previously 19:3

primary 53:4

prior 18:5 42:14 83:17

priority 83:17

privacy 83:3

private 48:20

HANSON RENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100

problem 26:5,6 36:22 37:2 52:9 53:1 54:10 72:17 75:13 76:3 problems 30:16 procedures 56:3,15 59:13 process 14:7 16:25 58:10 64:12 65:5 75:7 79:12 83:12 processing 40:13 professional 4:16 professionals 22:2 program 41:18 55:24 59:7 61:18 programs 22:12 23:18 44:6 project 66:15,18,20 projected 41:21 projects 23:18 prompt 2:11 25:21 prompted 2:9 proper 26:15 properly 8:1,9 13:6 85:12 property 44:18,22,23 proposal 83:9 proposed 23:7 65:15 prostitution 47:1 protect 70:25 protection 33:6 47:12 protest 58:1 60:10 provide 3:10 12:16 22:6 55:6 56:19 59:23 **provided** 56:6,10 providing 57:24 66:8 67:15 public 3:18,19,22 4:2,12,14 16:1 22:21 23:14,17,20 68:22 77:17,24 78:3,13,18 pull 28:17,18,20 34:25 74:9

proactive 45:11

purchased 35:8 pursue 76:10 pursuing 51:9 76:18 push 32:1 36:6 37:5 45:13 pushed 37:3 **put** 6:6 44:5 49:11 56:1 66:3 70:2,14 75:9 77:1 78:16 80:16 81:2 83:10 84:25 putting 80:19 81:6 Q qualities 61:10 quality 61:9 question 31:13 33:11 35:10 39:5 48:10 53:7 77:17 78:12 questions 33:3,15 42:8 62:9, 11 63:1,17 quick 36:24 61:24 quickly 36:6 51:3 75:3 **quorum** 7:15 quote 11:14 R racers 79:6,10

78:23 79:3

racism 53:1

radar 74:6

radio 61:7

ramp 37:7

range 22:2

06/10/2021

racing 28:7,23 29:18,25 61:2 raise 3:25 4:9 32:9 71:10 raised 77:10 84:15 raising 37:18 rank 36:6 55:25 79:19 ranks 43:13

ray 75:7 reach 24:22 85:1,3 reaches 77:7 ready 17:3,15 44:9 real 61:24 75:13 realized 82:18 reason 79:9 reassured 37:24 38:24 recall 14:23 38:6 54:18 77:6 receive 3:13 received 11:9 14:9 47:10 58:7 65:8,13,24 receives 14:7 receiving 75:17 recent 22:23 79:2 recently 14:25 37:18 recognition 13:22 64:22 82:11 recognize 16:3 25:10 recognized 22:11 recognizing 16:4 recommendations 11:16 51:13 65:19 recommended 13:1 reconvened 7:19 record 18:5,12 recording 8:15 records 22:18 **recoup** 24:17 recouping 14:22,24 21:12,15 recreational 82:23 recruit 22:25 42:13 64:17 recruited 42:13 recruiters 63:11 recruiting 22:1,9 40:11 41:19, 21,25 42:7,13 43:12,17 62:17,

21

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100

21,24 63:2,8 64:1 84:12 recruitment 58:8 60:19 61:25 **recruits** 84:16,19 red 30:2 redesigning 65:18 **redone** 81:21 reduced 44:20,21 reduction 34:5 44:16,22,25 45:23 **refer** 45:12 64:20 reference 7:18 14:19 15:14.19 16:3 38:9 reflecting 11:19 refrain 4:16 refuse 48:13 **refused** 25:10 regain 48:10 regard 65:1 Reginald 37:15 region 58:23 register 62:18 regular 30:20 51:8 59:11 regulation 26:14 **Reilly** 66:22 reimbursed 24:16 **reimbursement** 15:2 23:7,9 **relates** 33:9,12 relations 8:19 43:20,25 44:5 73:2 relationship 50:13 51:6,21 52:12 63:9 relationships 58:23 release 75:3 relevant 4:18 relieve 64:10

06/10/2021 remain 4:15 remaining 10:11 **remarkable** 60:14 80:6 remarks 11:2 13:13 14:1 Remember 4:7,8 reminder 2:15 reminders 2:3 4:2 **removed** 75:19 removing 45:14 rep 24:23 repaid 23:3 repeat 15:20 replaced 35:10 **report** 31:13,14 39:16,22 42:11,16 43:14 54:16 63:17, 20 64:22 65:7,9 reporter 8:16 reporting 14:11 **reports** 3:6 64:24,25 65:9 **repost** 12:11 **represent** 6:4 14:5 24:15 52:24 representation 38:20 representative 10:23 14:25 15:14 23:5 24:21 65:23 85:2 representatives 10:19 representing 9:5,9 represents 24:21 request 3:22,24 24:9 65:1 requested 77:17 require 23:7 74:19 **requirement** 12:17 75:5 requirements 21:23 22:8 requires 2:19 requiring 74:25

rescheduled 40:19,21

reserve 10:7 15:16 53:10,16, 20,24 54:4,7,9,14,16,20,23 55:2,3,9,10,18,23 56:7,15,17, 21 57:10,14,17,20 58:7,10,11, 13,14,15,18,21 59:1,5,7,10, 13,25 60:1,7,12,17,19 61:11, 13,14,23 62:1,4,20 63:5,14,24 64:11,15,17

reserves 52:23 55:24 61:4 63:18,20,21 64:7

Reservist 58:3 62:11

Reservists 56:10 58:4 62:21

reservoir 66:15,18,25

residences 46:21

residency 40:25

residents 41:4 43:8 79:5

resign 75:18

resolution 14:21 21:11,14 23:21 24:12 25:5 84:24

resolved 23:11 27:1

resource 55:13

resources 3:4 12:12 13:1 22:23 23:19 39:22 42:9 45:10 59:19 65:8 79:6 83:23

respect 80:14 respectful 4:16 respiriting 83:4 respond 49:4 52:19 78:5 responded 37:11 38:1 responds 46:13 response 33:6 46:20 responsibilities 11:20 12:6 rest 39:2 69:19 77:3 restaurants 42:3 restore 45:8 46:24 restrained 77:1

ANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313.567.8100 restricted 41:9,11,13 result 2:18 4:7 38:22 results 22:20 **resume** 11:18 **resumes** 11:10 retain 62:6 retaining 22:9 retention 23:14 retired 13:15 59:2 84:10 retirement 31:7 retirements 57:8 return 83:21 **Revard** 67:19 Reverend 7:9 16:22 17:7 18:4 44:3 review 11:22 55:16 59:9 64:24 80:18 reviewing 9:24 65:6 revision 65:14,20,23 70:5,10, 23 revisions 70:4 **rhetoric** 69:14,15 73:12 **Ricardo** 10:22 rid 70:20 82:11 risk 57:6,9 **Rivard** 67:6 Rivera 9:2 Rivertown 28:23 Road 51:4 52:5 82:3 **ROB** 68:18,23 69:21,24 71:2 72:10.24 73:8 74:12 75:20.24 77:5,15 79:22 80:2 81:11,13 82:13,15 84:2,5 85:6 **robberies** 45:17,22 robbery 44:15 45:24 **Robert** 8:18

06/10/2021 **Rochelle** 66:22 role 54:24 55:19 65:11 roll 25:25 55:23 rolled 28:3 42:15 76:4 rooftop 29:4 32:20 rooftops 29:11 rooster 13:21 Rosalia 9:1 **Roslyn** 10:15 roughly 43:6 Royal 81:24 **Royce** 55:6 rule 48:21 **rules** 26:14 49:3 rumor 52:17 run 36:16 running 30:1 57:24 78:7,9

S

Sacred 74:17 sacrifice 69:6 sad 69:8 83:9 safe 27:20 30:6 34:16 72:22 83:8,21 safely 56:14 Safer 83:21 safety 23:20 56:7 57:24 60:22 salons 42:4 **Sam** 66:23 sample 12:17 Sanders 75:21,23,25 76:14 Santana's 14:24 23:2 sat 80:19 Saturday 67:20

Savage 8:23 save 76:15 saving 70:8 scary 36:3 scene 46:23 **scenes** 57:25 **schedule** 40:20 scheduled 31:1 schedules 40:18 school 50:18,19 schools 42:3 44:8 50:25 scooper 81:18 Scotty 10:24 68:25 scout 46:8,9 screen 4:9 63:5 script 15:24 search 46:21 75:5 secretary 9:21 11:11,14,21,23 12:11,13,14,18 section 33:22 46:13,17 47:8, 13 security 57:25 60:22 seeking 21:24 22:15 seize 29:20 seizing 34:9 selection 84:12 selling 34:13 Senator 14:24 15:13 23:2 24:4 send 11:1 49:16 senior 9:1 44:9 seniority 55:5 sense 12:3 separate 33:14 separated 15:7 separation 15:6



separations 41:15 57:8 September 60:21 Sergeant 10:3,8 43:2 44:5 48:7 50:4,7 55:7,25 series 45:13 serve 21:25 48:15 54:21 56:24 serves 21:21 service 27:14 28:18 33:7 35:5, 9 58:17 59:3 62:5 74:23 82:10 85:4 services 4:17 12:21 36:11 38:21 39:2 60:24 serving 62:3 74:21 75:5 session 7:18 11:4,7 23:2 set 56:14 severe 37:24 severity 78:22 **sexual** 44:14 share 46:2 48:6 63:20 65:6 77:21,25 **Sharon** 10:4 53:19 72:11 **sheet** 56:19 Sheffield 44:4 Sheriff 37:14,19 sheriff's 35:20 **shift** 45:12 shindig 31:8 Shirley 6:10 shocked 6:17 shoes 62:25 shooting 46:12 72:1 shootings 27:8,23 46:18 short 22:16 35:21 shortage 37:16 shortly 64:6 **shout** 48:7

show 14:24 22:18 42:7 76:24 showing 44:15,24 **shown** 45:19 shows 40:19,22 shuffle 63:7 shutdowns 61:5 sick 41:11 side 9:13 33:24 34:3,4 51:5,7 53:2 63:13 68:11 76:1 sides 28:23 sign 3:14,20 76:24 signals 75:6 significant 27:11 62:2 Significantly 58:2 signing 63:22 68:8,12 silence 4:20 **Silvia** 14:24 similar 2:13 simply 49:1 61:19 **sir** 16:13 19:21 25:7,12,17 26:7,13,16,17,18,20 32:11 33:15 39:6,9 42:17 47:18 61:24 63:13 69:3 72:24 73:8 77:5,15 79:25 siren 76:12 site 60:8 sites 56:7,10 57:4 sitting 9:14 situation 9:12 14:11 26:25 31:20 sixth 33:10 **skills** 56:2 skillset 47:8 **Sloan** 8:25 **slow** 52:8 Smartsheet 3:20,24 4:8

06/10/2021

smile 48:3 Smith 68:25 71:2,3,19 **social** 42:5 47:12 society 83:20 sorority 42:4 sort 42:15 **sound** 74:6 sounded 7:13 sounds 4:21 26:23 33:6 south 46:10 Southfield 68:5 Southwest 76:1 spaces 48:20 49:14 83:8 Spanish 64:2 spark 56:18 speak 3:22 4:14 51:6 61:17 speaker 4:13,15 13:24 69:1 84:2 85:6 speaker's 77:6 speakers 68:23 72:10 75:20 79:22 speaking 26:2,13 35:14 38:17 65:22 83:11 speaks 64:2 special 47:4,7 60:8 specialist 8:18 Specifically 70:4 specifications 11:8 12:7 speech 4:6 speed 52:8 73:16 speeders 69:8 speeding 28:16 72:17 73:22 **speeds** 76:5 **spend** 60:5 **spent** 60:6



spoke 37:15 71:5 sporting 57:16 spread 41:20 42:1 spreadsheet 41:16 spreadsheets 41:5 squad 79:5 square 43:6 **Stacey** 43:1 staff 4:14 5:18 8:13,17 10:11 11:15 12:12 25:19 26:10 33:14 39:11.12 40:7 42:24 47:16 51:22 54:6 63:8 64:24 65:5,8,9,13 78:25 84:9 staffing 30:4 39:23 Stair 13:16 80:6 Stair's 31:7 stand 24:8 85:15 standard 56:14 standards 21:21 22:5 56:16 59:14 stands 17:12 24:10 **Stanton** 10:14 star 4:1,10 34:23 36:7 start 4:4 28:8 29:12 36:3 43:4 44:9 60:20 82:20 started 11:7 64:6 66:18 starting 5:15 19:16,20 24:6 state 10:23 14:25 15:13 19:19 21:23 22:2,5,13 23:12 24:4, 21,23 35:20 59:19 79:15,16 statement 52:14 statements 52:2,21 75:25 **States** 34:12 stating 81:24 stations 35:7 37:4,7 stats 44:12 45:25

06/10/2021 status 22:5 65:2 statutory 59:9 stay 30:13 50:6 57:12 64:8 76:1 81:2 staying 29:3 steal 36:10 steaming 41:20 step 37:6 62:24 Stephanie 24:4 Stephen 10:7 53:17,21 55:11 stepped 57:20 58:18 Stewart 8:21 **stick** 15:23 sticks 73:16 79:1,7,13 Stokes 10:3 53:19 55:7 **stop** 26:13 48:20 79:1,7,12 stopped 29:11 76:5 stopping 76:13 store 48:12,22,25 49:3,7,9 68:5.7 stores 37:8 42:3 straight 68:21 strategically 29:6 strategies 27:16,25 45:8 46:2 strategy 14:14 34:2 83:6 street 34:15 36:12 52:23 57:21 61:5 67:20 73:19 74:2,11 76:4,6 streets 35:14,16 38:7 45:14,16 83:4 strict 28:5 29:1 strong 50:6 54:21 strongly 29:11 30:14 struggle 56:22 struggles 45:2 struggling 82:21

ENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com

313.567.8100

student 68:10 stuff 27:4 submission 65:6 **submit** 20:14 submits 64:24 subscribe 3:12 suburban 79:18 **success** 44:15 successes 46:3 sudden 25:25 sued 76:17 suffer 38:22 39:2 76:16 suggest 49:1 suggests 12:4 summary 65:10,14 summer 14:14 27:5 28:14 69:6 79:13 sums 55:17 sunshine 76:24 super 27:24 Supermarket 50:12 supermarket along 48:5 supervise 12:22 Supervising 8:24,25 9:1 supervisor 55:24 56:4 supervisors 55:9,25 65:11 supervisory 21:16 supper 67:11 supply 38:25 support 7:24,25 8:8 13:4,5 14:22 15:12,19 21:11,14 23:22 24:11,24,25 31:4 33:24 50:11,17,23 57:2,4,21 60:25 66:22 73:14 74:8 79:19 84:20, 23,24 85:10,11

supported 8:2,10 13:7 14:24

23:2,23 85:13 supporting 83:12 supports 23:11 suppose 49:11 supposed 30:12 48:11 suppression 83:13 Supreme 81:2 surrounded 31:21 surveil 83:20 suspect 27:1 suspension 75:8 suspensions 41:14 sworn 39:24 40:2,10,24,25 41:4,7,9,14 57:23 59:20 61:3, 5 62:21 Sylvia 23:2 system 83:18 Т

table 38:16 tactic 70:4 tail 13:21 tailgating 30:15 takes 48:4 taking 35:14 37:3 talent 80:7 talented 35:1 talk 14:15 27:4 34:1 43:11 50:22 55:16 80:23 talked 30:8 46:14,24 51:10 talking 34:5 53:1 talks 39:10 **Tanya** 10:9 target 60:20 task 11:9 61:6

06/10/2021 taught 83:19 Tawana 79:24 82:13 tax 76:21 taxes 71:17 taxpayer 22:21 23:17 team 7:5 46:13 55:9 80:13 teams 42:3 47:4 technical 26:5 54:10 Technology 8:15 teeth 75:9 telephone 4:1 temporary 40:14 tenth 33:10 **Teresa** 8:19 terminal 68:11 terms 4:17 5:2 14:16 15:21,25 24:9,22 25:4 29:20 77:22 terrorist 82:12 terrorize 51:7 52:3 terrorizing 81:25 82:6 testament 43:17 testing 40:16 56:7,18 text 16:16 77:9 texted 16:14 theft 44:21 thing 69:23 76:12 things 11:12 28:24 29:2 30:2 38:16 47:5 49:8 50:15 55:22 68:13 70:12,22 73:23 74:10 77:1 80:20 thinking 76:20,21 thought 17:1 31:12 ticket 29:21 Tiffany 8:21 **Tim** 72:11

26

time 4:20 5:3 10:16 12:9 15:7, 23 16:10 18:25 21:4 22:16,22 27:7,9,18 29:9 33:6 34:7,8,24 36:1 37:19,23 40:13 43:15,16 44:18,25 45:4,17 46:18 48:2 51:12 53:20 56:25 57:2,3 58:20 60:5 61:22 69:6,19 72:1,22 75:11 77:3 78:6,8,9 82:19 83:19 84:21 timeframe 15:21 timeline 15:17 timely 5:2 times 5:7 17:14 19:16 49:7 63:11 76:5 tire 46:11 tired 71:25 tireless 24:24 tires 79:8 title 75:16 **Tobacco** 74:24 today 8:16 10:10 14:6,21 43:1, 24 50:9 53:16 58:7 81:15 84:23 told 49:6 76:9 83:14 tool 79:14 tools 47:10 73:17 79:17 top 12:15 36:3 top-tier 22:12 topic 57:18 topics 56:4 total 40:1,9,10,11,23,24,25 41:1,2,8,14,17,18 43:16 44:17,21 touch 57:12 67:14 town 28:24 tracking 56:17 traditional 61:14 traffic 52:7 56:10 79:4



trained 15:8 64:9 84:17

training 14:23 15:3 21:12,15 22:1,3,6,8,12,17 23:1,3,8,9, 10,14 24:17 33:23 55:24 56:2 59:8.12.15.18 64:12 65:25 66:2,3,5 84:14

trainings 66:8

transition 62:4

transparency 75:6

transpired 15:19

transportation 68:10

travesty 81:15

treated 83:25

tremendous 44:14

trend 45:19

trended 44:19

trending 27:24 45:22 trends 45:6,7

trespassing 49:5

troops 38:5,17,23

trouble 46:8

true 2:12 31:16 70:11

Trumbo 68:10

Tuesday 3:11 65:17 turn 49:10 75:6 76:12

turning 34:14 turnover 22:20 **TV** 72:1 80:22

two-plus 34:17 two-thirds 58:6

type 82:18 typically 62:21

Tyrone 10:23 23:5 24:23

U

UAW 13:14,15 unable 51:23 61:19 84:20 unaffordable 82:21,22 unavailable 62:17 uncomfortably 32:21 unconstitutional 84:22 understand 9:16 32:5,12,25 understanding 31:14 78:15 understands 38:9 Underwood 8:20 unelected 81:16 unfairly 22:18 unfinished 66:11,13,14 unharmed 27:3 uniform 54:20 union 6:5 unions 24:6 unit 35:11 55:7 79:2 **United** 34:12 units 60:25 unloved 83:16 unmute 25:19 69:22 unplanned 75:4 unprotected 4:6 upcoming 66:1 update 11:24 12:7,13 41:19 updates 67:13 uproar 76:18 82:16 upsetting 71:6 urge 78:24 79:20 urges 23:15 utilize 47:10

vacant 40:1,8,9 vaccinated 48:19 vaccine 56:9,14 58:8 valuable 55:12 variety 56:3 Vazquez 10:6 vehicle 44:21 vehicles 29:21,23 79:9 Vernail 10:2 vested 21:17 veterans 62:16 Vice- 19:8 21:6 Vice-chair 5:15,16,21,23 6:5 13:3 14:4 16:3,11,23 17:5,8, 11,16,17 18:25 19:3 20:4,5 21:8,10 24:2 37:22 47:21 75:12 81:16 85:10 victimized 67:9 victims 59:21 video 3:7 4:4,5 videos 35:13 violating 4:16 violators 37:6 violence 67:9,12 violent 44:23 45:20 virtual 2:3 3:18 68:20 virtually 31:21 visibility 56:19 visible 2:10 82:19,24 visit 3:2 62:17 visits 60:8 voice 79:19 84:25 volume 78:22

RENAISSANCE hansonreporting.com 313.567.8100 COURT REPORTERS & VI

V

volunteer 33:22 57:5

volunteers 54:20 56:23

vote 17:16,18,20 18:5 19:18 20:5,8,11,14,24 25:11 71:14 79:20 80:21,24,25 81:1,22

voted 6:6 25:2

voter 83:12

voters 65:16 81:21

votes 21:6,7

voting 19:19,20

W

wait 9:8 16:2 66:13 71:12 waiting 25:20 walk 35:16 67:5,7 walked 33:19 walks 31:1 67:23 Walmart 37:1 wanted 11:10 13:14 31:6 36:14 38:23 63:19 64:4 69:4 70:1,14 wanting 24:15 warmer 27:13 warning 29:8 warrant 77:19 78:14,17 warrants 46:21 74:21 75:5 Washington 37:19 watch 28:2 watched 35:13 76:11 water 71:17 82:22 Wayne 36:10,11 37:14,17,19 weapons 34:12 70:22 wear 48:13,19,24,25 74:20 weather 27:13 website 3:3,5,25

06/10/2021

week 29:24 31:15 41:21,24 64:21,22 70:1,17,18 74:18

weekend 28:14 31:1 34:1,7 41:22,23 60:25

weekly 3:8 26:6

weeks 33:16

well- 83:7

wellbeing 83:17

wellness 61:16

west 9:13 26:25 28:23 34:3 51:7,16,17,18 63:12

whippets 36:17,22

White 2:1 4:24 7:5,15 8:13,14
9:3,6,10,13,18,21,24 10:18,21
11:1 14:10 16:17 21:4,5 28:3
33:19 34:23 35:5 36:5 37:5,25
38:9 41:20 53:7,8 54:2,3,6,13
64:18,19 65:13 66:11 84:9
White's 27:5 29:7 38:3 60:21

Whitley 8:23 18:2,4 widespread 79:11 William 6:20 Williams 10:7 Willie 6:13 25:15 Wilson 37:5 witnesses 46:14 woman 31:9 68:14 women 5:20 27:17 65:15 69:12 73:10 Women's 13:20 wonderful 66:25 Woods 52:15 Woodward 51:8

word 42:2 55:16 81:25

words 52:4 72:8

work 6:21 12:12 27:19 28:21 33:22,23 34:8 42:1 43:13,18 47:7 50:19 51:19,20 57:20,22 59:21 68:9 70:4,5 73:19 82:11

worked 33:23,24 55:11 64:7 82:9,12 83:13

worker 47:12

working 5:18 33:25 34:6 37:16 45:6 62:8 64:7 66:3

works 35:15 36:21 63:23

workshops 66:6

world 83:16

worn 48:11 75:4

wrap 39:5

wrapped 61:22

writing 12:16

written 11:8 40:17,18

wrong 15:1

Υ

- year 15:11 27:7,9,10 28:9 43:15,17 44:7,13,16,18,22,25 45:2,3,4,5,6,15,16,17 46:4 54:17 56:9 58:2,17 59:5 61:19 71:22
- years 12:18 15:11,12 22:16, 20,23 23:4 24:14 31:9 36:22, 23 38:8 45:20,24 58:17 62:4 66:16 71:11 84:14

yesterday 65:11

yield 69:19 72:22 77:3

young 10:4 35:8 68:24,25 69:2,4,12 71:4 80:12 81:10 82:17,24 83:3,5,13

youngest 66:16

youth 61:15 82:16 83:6

Ζ

zoom 2:4,7,8,11,19 3:15 4:9 26:9 50:9 65:17

zoom's 2:16 4:17



